

Bulletin No 5 1978

## RESEARCH REGISTER

of

Studies on Co-operatives in Developing Countries and Selected Bibliography



ICA Library 334:01(-77) ICA-R ICA 02122

LONDON

BUDAPEST

Aim of the International Research Register of Studies on Co-operatives in Developing Countries is to maintain a centralized record and disseminate information concerning research studies and other publications.

The Research Register is an  $\overline{\text{ICA project}}$  within the framework of the Co-operative Development Decade.

The bibliography has been collected and collated by the Polish Cooperative Research Institute, prepared for publication and provided with indexes by the Hungarian Co-operative Research Institute, and printed in Hungary.

A suplement of the Directory of Organizations Engaged in Co-operative Research is intended to be attached to the Bulletins. Informations concerning research organizations are welcomed.

HU ISSN 0133-5359

Informations about recently completed research and published works should be directed to the Co-operative Research Institute, 00-013 Warsaw, ul. Jasna 1 Poland.

Inquiries concerning the publication and correspondence regarding distribution or address changes should be directed to Mária Dölle, Hungarian Co-operative Research Institute, 1054 Budapest, Alkotmány u. 25.

ICA 02122

Bulletin No 5 1978

RESEARCH

REGISTER

of

Studies on Co-operatives in Developing Countries and Selected Bibliography

334:01(-77) ICA

CO-OPERATIVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE

CO-OPERATIVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE

00-013 Warsaws, Ul. Jasna 1. London WIX 9PA 11 Upper Grosvenor Street 1054 Budapest, Alkotmány u. 25. POLAND ENGLAND

### Published by

Co-operative Research Institute 1054 Budapest, V. Alkotmány u.25.

HUNGARY

Responsible for publications

Dr. A. GYENES Director

### Printed

in the Multiplier's Office of AGROINFORM
Responsible manager: BUDAI JÁNOS
Budapest, 1978. Serial number: 145/78

### ADVISORY GROUP

# International Research Register on Co-operatives in Developing Countries

Mr. T. Kowalak - Chairman Co-operative Research Institute,

Warsaw, Poland

International Co-operative Alliance,

London, United Kingdom

Mr. A. Gyenes Co-operative Research Institute,

Budapest, Hungary

Mr. P. Bertelsen UNESCO
Mr. J.E. Cabrera UNIDO

Mr. W. Dülfer Forschungsinstitut für Genossenschafts-

wesen, Philipps Universität, Marburg, Fed. Rep. Germany

Mr. M. Jönsson Swedish Co-operative Centre,

Stockholm, Sweden

Mr. A Krasheninnikov Centrosoyus,

Moscow, Soviet Union

Mr. A Krüger Verband Deutscher Konsumgenossen-

schaften

Berlin, German Democratic Republik

Mr. R. Louis International Labour Office,

Geneva, Switzerland

Mr. R. Marshall Co-operative College,

Loughborough, Uniter Kingdom

Mr. N. Newiger Food and Agriculture Organization

Rome, Italy

Mr. D. Nyanjom ICA Regional Office for East and

Central Africa, Moshi, Tanzania

Mr. E.H. Thomas Institut Français de la Coopération,

Paris, France

ICA Regional Office and Education Centre, for South-East Asia, Mr. P. Weeraman

New Delhi, India

Mr. P. Yeo

Co-operative College, Loughborough, United Kingdom

### EDITORIAL COMMITTEE

Dr. S. Dandapani

INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE LONDON

Dr. T. Kowalak CO-OPERATIVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE WARSAWA

Dr. A. Gyenes CO-OPERATIVE RESEARCH INSTITUTE BUDAPEST

### GUIDE

### Codes for languages

Arabic	Ar	Hindi	Hŀ	Protuguese	Pt
Czech	Св	Hungarian	Hu	Russian	Ru
Dutch	Ne	Indonesian	In	Sinhala	St
English	En	Italian	It	Spanish	Es
French	Fr	Korean	Ko	Swedish	Sw
German	De	Malay	Ma	Thai	Ta
Gujarati	Gu	Persian	Pe	Turkish	Tr
Hebrew	He	Polish	Pl		

For the summaries the same codes are used but beginning with a small letter

### Other abbreviations used

bibliography	blbl .	reference/s/	ref
diagram/s/	dgm	statistical	stat
graph/s/	gph	supplement	suppl
Illustration/s/	f11	table/s/	tah

### Readers' Guide

After bibliographical data each item contains indication of language and of the geographical coverage.

 $\underline{\textbf{English title}}$  of studies is always underlined by a broken line, in case the original language differs, a translation is given in brackets.

In case of <u>unpublished</u> papers, the date mentioned is that of finishing research or manuscript. In such cases the sponsoring institute is also indicated.

### INTRODUCTION

To promote a wider dissemination of research results and in the interest of avoiding unnecessary duplication of efforts it is intended to build up and maintain a centralized record of wide range of research on the role of co-operatives in the developing countries which is being done by co-operators, research institutes, universities, government departments and development organizations throughout the world. In setting up the ICA Register of Research on Co-operatives in Developing Countries the first step was the publication in early 1974 of a Directory of Organizations Engaged in Co-operative Research. The second stage was the publication of the Selected Bibliography, 1968-1972, followed by subsequent issues of the Bulletins of Abstracts which contain also abstracts above the bibliographical data of current and projected researches. Meanwhile a complete catalogue of all the items will be maintained at the Co-operative Research Institutes in Budapest and Warsaw and in the ICA Library in London.

The detailed and time-consuming work involved in preparation of the Directory, the Bibliography and the Bulletins represents a collaborative effort on the part of the International Co-operative Alliance, the Polish Co-operative Research Institute in Warsaw and the Hungarian Co-operative Research Institute in Budapest.

The Bulletins cover both published works (books, articles, reports etc.) and unpublished documents concerning co-operatives in Africa, Latin America, Asia and Oceania. The data have been provided by correspondents from those research institutions which have agreed to collaborate on the Research Register, and also by the International Co-operative Alliance and the Co-operative Research Institutes in Warsaw and in Budapest. The informations have been collected partly from secondary sources, accordingly in some cases the bibliographical data are incomplete.

In the interest to make the collection of material as complete and accurate as possible, contributions are welcomed. The bibliographical data and abstracts will be included into the subsequent publications.

It is hoped, that the Bibliography and the continuos follow-up through the Bulletins will keep co-operative researchers well informed on the work of their counterparts elsewhere in the world and will enable at least some degree of coordination in research efforts.

### **CONTENTS**

		Page
I.	REFERENCE WORKS	11
	Bibliographies	11
	Reports of conferences, seminars, meetings, recommendations and resolutions on co-operatives	12
II.	GENERAL WORKS	13
	Co-operative theory and doctrine, co-operative principles, theoretical studies	13
	Role of co-operatives in socio-economic development	15
	Situation of the co-operative movement in general and by country and different levels	21
III.	CO-OPERATIVE TYPES	24
	Agricultural co-operatives	24
	Agricultural marketing co-operatives	28
	Co-operative farming	29
	Agricultural processing co-operatives	31
	Fishery co-operatives	32
	Multipurpose co-operatives	33
	Credit and banking co-operatives	33
	Consumer co-operatives	37
	Workers productive co-operatives.	37
	Service co-operatives	39

V. NON-CONVENTIONAL CO-OPERATIVE FORMS	40
Traditional forms of mutual self-help associations	40
Modern forms of mutual and self-help associations, pre-co-operatives	42
V. STRUCTURE OF THE CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENTS	43
Relationship between co-operative organizations at multinational and international levels	43
VI. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF CO-OPERATIVES	44
General	44
Rules and by-laws, internal administartion /accounting/	45
Democracy in co-operatives, member participation and leadership	45
Personnel policy	46
VII. ECONOMICS OF CO-OPERATIVES	47
Business policy	47
VIII, SOCIAL FUNCTIONS OF CO-OPERATIVES	48
IX. EDUCATION, TRAINING AND INFORMATION	49
Education and training of members	49
Training of employees	5 <b>2</b>
Educational programmes by industrialized countries for co-operators from developing countries	52
X. CO-OPERATIVES AND THE STATE	53
General	53
Laws, legislation, decrees for co-operatives and influencing co-operatives /including tax regulations/	53
Co-operatives and land reform	54
Special assistance and support given by governmental authorities /subsidies, privileges, etc./	57

XI.	EXTERNAL RELATIONS OF CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENTS	58
XII.	INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ACTIVITIES	59
XIII.	SUBJECTS RELATED TO CO-OPERATIVES	60
XIV.	RESEARCH	62
	AUTHOR INDEX	63
	GEOGRAPHICAL INDEX	71
	SUBJECT INDEX	77
	LIST OF CORRESPONDENTS	02

### I. REFERENCE WORKS

### BIBLIOGRAPHIES

- 1. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Rural development in Africa:
  a bibliography /Part II: North, South, West/. Training and Methods No. 17.
  Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1971.
  En Africa
- 2. SMITH, Ch. L., A bibliography on land reform in rural America.

  San Francisco: Center for Rural Studies, 1972. pp. 47.

  En America
- 3. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. The Near East and South Asia: a bibliography. Training and Methods No.13. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1971.

En Asia; Near East and South

- 4. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Agrarian reform in Brazil: a biblioraphy /Part II: Regional development/. Training and Methods No. 19.

  Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1972.

  En Brazil
- 5. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Agriculture in the economy of the Caribbean: a bibliography. Training and Methods No.24. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1974.

  En Caribbean
- 6. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Chile's agricultural economy:
  a bibliography. Training and Methods No. 12. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure
  Center, University of Wisconsin, 1970.

En Chile

- 7. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Colombia; background and trends a bibliography. Training and Methods No. 9. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1969.
- 8. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Economic aspects of agricultural development in Ecuador: a bibliography. Training and Methods No.21.

  Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1972.

  En Ecuador
- 9. INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE. Films on co-operation. New Delhi: I.C.A., Regional Office and Education Centre for South-East Asia, 1975. pp. 24.

n India

An annotated bibliography of the co-operative films. It has been divided in two parts. First part contains the list of films available with the International Co-operative Alliance which can be loaned out. Second part contains the list of the films on co-operatives available with the member countries of the ICA Regional Office.

- 10. LAND TENURE CENTER LIBRARY. Land tenure and agrarian reform in Mexico a bibliography. Training and Methods No.10. Madison,
  Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1969.

  En Mexico
- ela: a bibliography. Training and Methods No. 20. Madison, Wisc.: Land
  Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1972.

REPORTS OF CONFERENCES, SEMINARS, MEETINGS, RECOMMENDATIONS AND RESOLUTIONS ON CO-OPERATIVES

See: 24, 36, 51, 70, 76, 89, 104, 105, 121, 126, 127, 128, 138, 164, 177, 180, 182, 184.

### II. GENERAL WORKS

## CO-OPERATIVE THEORY AND DOCTRINE, CO-OPERATIVE PRINCIPLES, THEORETICAL STUDIES

See also: 46, 47

12. AGARWAL, R.D., Objectives of the co-operative enterprise. Co-operative Information, Geneva.

En, Fr, Es

Objectives of the co-operative enterprise. Co-operative Enterprise. Worldwide

Article on the objectives of the co-operative enterprise - covers productivity, profitability, management performance, social role, etc.

- 13. BENNETT, J.W., Some social-anthropological perspectives on cooperation and collectives in agrarian communities. Madison, 1975. pp. 22.

  En Worldwide
  - Paper from the Group Farming Conference, Madison, 1975.
- 14. DAVIDOVIČ, G., Vers un monde coopératif. (Towards a cooperative world.) Ottawa: Editions du jour, 1975. pp. 222. Fr Worldwide
- 15. NASH, J., HOPKINS, N.S., Anthropological approaches to the study of co-operatives, collectives and self-management. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris-La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 3-34. .

  En Worldwide
- 16. CALVERT, P., Idea of property in Latin America. Bank of London and South America Review, London. 9, 103, 374-380 (1975).

  En Latin America

17. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE, AREA OFFICE IN SAN JOSÉ. Nuevas proyecciones de la educación-formación en los procesos cooperativos y/o asociativos. (New projections of education - training in the co-operative and/or association processes.) Cooperación Latinoamericana, Población y Desarrollo No. 4. San José: ILO, 1976. pp. 136, bibl, stat, tab.

Is Latin America

International Labour Office, San José

Working paper exploring the areas in which co-operative education should be developed to serve and enhance the role of co-operatives in social change and economic development processes in Latin America.

- 18. HAZELA, T.N., Principles, problems and practice of co-operation. Agra: Shival, Agarwal and Co., 1975. pp. 569.

  En India
- 19. LEVI, Y., A methodological framework for the classification of rural co-operatives in Israel. Journal of Rural Co-operation, Tel Aviv. 3, 2, 119-129 (1975).

En

Israel

20. GIOVENARDI, E.P., Socio-economic pre-conditions for co-operative development in East Africa /Kenya, Tanzania, Uganda/. pp. 36.

En Kenya, Tanzania, Uganda
An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development,

An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development, prepared at Loughborough University of Technology, May 1972.

21. KHAN, M., Manual of instructions for co-operative organization unit. Peshawar, 1975. pp. 61, dgm.

Pakistan

Pakistan Academy for Rural Development, Peshawar

Co-operative education pamphlet comprising a draft manual for rural co-operative organization units in Pakistan - outlines the role of local institution units in rural development, covers motivation and education of local rural communities, and describes job requirements for co-operative managers, techniques of identification of rural problems.

22. GAGNON, G. ed., Coopérative ou autogestion. (Co-operatives or self-management.) Montréal: Presses de l'Université de Montréal, 1976. pp. 484.

Fr

Senegal, Cuba, Tunisia

23. KÜRSCHNER, F., Das Konzept der Ujamaa-Dörfer. Eine kritische Bestandsaufnahme. (The concept of ujamaa-villages. The critical description.)

Afrika Spectrum, Hamburg. 10, 3, 245-262 (1975).

De Tanzania

ROLE OF CO-OPERATIVES IN SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

See also: 1, 11, 57, 68, 77, 80, 85, 87, 124, 130, 142, 148, 170, 171, 177, 178.

24. LOUIS, R., United Nations General Assembly Resolution and the future of co-operatives. Co-operative Information, Geneva. 63, 1, 1-21 (1977), ref.

En, Fr, Es

Worldwide

Article comprising the text of and comments on a UN General Assembly resolution concerning the future of co-operatives and the role of the co-operative movement in social change and economic development.

- 25. MOORE, M.P., Co-operative labour in peasant agriculture.

  Journal of Peasant Studies, London. 2, 3, 270-291 (1975).

  Worldwide
- 26. The role of agricultural co-operatives in development strategies. Washington: Agricultural Co-operative Development International, 1974. pp. 62.

En

Worldwide

27. NASH, J., DANDLER, J., HOPKINS, N.S. eds. <u>Popular</u> participation in social change. Co-operatives, collectives and nationalized industry. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 622.

En Developing countries

This volume is a collection of reports presented at the international symposium of anthropology held in Oshkosh, Wisconsin, August 1973.

Thirty contributions concerns four general themes: Introduction of cooperatives into peasant societies; Cooperative transformation of capitalist agriculture; Movements and ideologies in the cooperative process; Cooperatives, collectives, and self-management in commerce and industry.

28. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE. Séminaire EIT/DANIDA "Syndicalisme et coopératives", Lome /Togo/, 15-30 Janvier 1976: rapport. (Seminar ILO/DANIDA "Syndicalism and co-operatives", Lome /Togo/, Jan 15th-30th, 1976: report.) ILO-WED/S. 36. Geneva: ILO, 1976. pp. II, 100, list of participants.

Fr

### Africa, Francophone

Conference report on the role of trade unions and co-operatives in promoting economic development in French-speaking African countries - includes a summary of conclusions and recommendations: and country case studies of co-operatives in Africa and in Denmark.

29. ANANOGBE, K., <u>Intraeconomic integration by co-operatives as precondition for international integration, the case of Western African Countries.</u>

En

### Africa, West

Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossenschaftswesen, Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany, started in February 1977.

- 30. CHAPARRO, A., Rôle des organisations de travailleurs ruraux dans de développement de l'agriculture et l'amélioration de la vie rurale en Amérique Latine. (The role of rural workers' organizations in the development of agriculture and in improvement of rural life in Latin America.)

  Réforme agraire, co-opératives et colonisation, Rome. 1976. 2, 61-74.

  Fr. En Latin America
- 31. FEDER, E., Solving the problems of production, unemployment and poverty: the dilemma facing agricultural co-operatives in Latin America. Tel Aviv: International Research Center on Rural Co-operative Communities, 1974. pp.7.

Latin America

Paper presented at International Symposium on "Dynamics of Interrelations between Agricultural Co-operatives and Government", 1974, Tel Aviv, Israel.

32. GARCIA, A., El sector cooperativo en el desarrollo de América Latina. (The co-operative sector and development in Latin America.)

Trimestre Económico. México. 43, 2, 321-349 (1976).

Es

En

Latin America

33. HUIZER, G., The strategy of peasant mobilization: some cases from Latin America and South East Asia. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 307-340.

En . Latin America, South East Asia

34. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE, AREA OFFICE IN SAN JOSÉ.
Población, empleo y cooperación en América Latina. (Population, employment and co-operation in Latin America.) Cooperación Latinoamericana,
Población y Desarrollo No.6. San José: ILO, 1976, pp.169, stat. tab.
Es Latin America

Working paper on the relationship between population increase and unemployment problems in Latin America, with particular reference to the potential role of a co-operative sector and to productive co-operatives in the economic development process.

35. KEATINGE, E.B., Latin America peasant corporate communities: potentials for mobilisation and political integration. Journal of Anthropological Research, Albuquerque, 29, 1, 37-58 (1973).

En Latin America

36. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE, SOUTH PACIFIC COM-MISSION. ILO/SPC South Pacific Seminar on co-operatives and population, Suva, Fiji, 13-15 December 1976: report. Geneva: ILO, 1976. lv, gph, list of participants, ref stat tab.

En Oceania

ISBN 92-2-101701-X

Conference report on the role of the co-operative movement in population activities on Oceania - discusses the potential of co-operatives in promotion of population education and family planning, and includes recommendations.

37. TEHAMI, A., Le programme algérien des "industries locales". (Algerian programme of "local industries".) pp. 191 + 47.

r Algeria

The diploma made at the Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977. Introduction of the intermediary technology into the strategy of economic development. 38. ONGESO, P.I., <u>Integrated rural development. The role of cooperatives with its implications for Kenya.</u> pp. 40.

En Bangladesh, Kenya

This unpublished article is available for loan at the Library of Co-operative College, Loughborough, U.K.. The author analyses the concept of integrated development and the role of co-operatives. He also makes special study of Comilla in Bangladesh and its implications for Kenya. The article was completed in 1977.

39. SATTAR, G., <u>Introductory notes on some locally initiated development projects in Bangladesh.</u> Comilla: Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, 1975. pp. 27.

En

Bangladesh

A short note on the development activities initiated by some agricultural co-operatives.

40. BORSTEIN, V.J., Le développement communautaire et son influence dans la macro-structure. (The community development and its impact on the macro-structure.) pp. 158.

Fr

Brazil, Fase

A diploma project made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1976. Case study of Fase, Brazil.

41. AMUAM, A., The dualistic economic structure in Cameroun and the co-operative way to reduce it.

En

Cameroun

Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossenschaftswesen, Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany, started in April 1977.

42. LULSEGED ASFAW., The role of state domain lands in Ethiopia's agricultural development. Paper, No. 106. Madison: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1975. pp. 36.

Er

Ethiopia

43. BAVISKAR, B.S., The political role of co-operatives in Maharashtra, India. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 509-520.

En

India, Maharashtra

- 44. REDDY, G.R., Panchayati Raj and rural development in Andhra Pradesh, India. RLG No. 4. Ithaca: Rural Development Committee, Center for International Studies, Cornell University, 1974. pp. V, 83.
- 45. HANEL, A., MÜLLER, J.O., On the evaluation of rural cooperatives with reference to governmental development policies. Case study Iran. Marburgen Schriften zum Genossenschaftswesen. Reihe B. Vol.15. Göttingen: Vanderhoeck and Ruprecht, 1976. pp. X, 298. En Iran
- 46. DON, Y., Industrialization in advanced rural communities: the Israeli kibbutz. Sociologia Ruralis, Assen. 17, 1-2, 59-74 (1977).

  Israel
- 47. DON, Y., L'industrialisation des zones rurales et le mochavisraélien. (Industrialization of rural areas and the Israeli moshavim.)

  Revue des Études Coopératives, Paris. 187, (2) 107-113 (1977).

  Fr

  Israel
- 48. NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA. National convention on role of co-operatives in the new economic programme 3rd September

  1975. New Delhi: National Co-operative Union of India, 1975. pp. 75.

  En India

The above contains agenda notes, which are as follows: Streamlining the distribution of essential commodities - role of co-operatives; Workers' association with co-operative industries; Distribution of controlled cloth role of co-operatives; National programme for the use of ground water role of co-operatives; Development plan for handloom section - role of co-operatives.

49. AHMAD SARJI BIN ABDUL HAMID, <u>Farmers' co-operatives in Malaysia: towards an integrated rural development</u>. Kuala Lumpur: Farmers' Organization Authority, 1975. pp. 14.

En Malaysia

Paper presented at the Seminar on approaches to rural development in Asia, Kuala Lumpur, 26 May to 3 June 1975 organized by the Asian Centre for development administration.

50. STAVENHAGEN, R., Collective agriculture and capitalism in Mexico: a way out or a dead end? Latin American Perspectives, Riverside. 2, 2, 146-163 (1975).

En Mexico

En

51. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE. Rwanda: projet pllote de développement rural en prefecture de Kigali: resultats du project et recommandations en découlant (Rwanda: pilot project on the rural development in Kigali district: project results and recommendations.) ILO/RWA/71/508. Geneva: ILO, 1976. pp. 46, flouw charts, map and stat tab..

Rwar

ISBN 92-2-201674-2

Outlines project activities and results in respect of surveys of cooperatives and agricultural training.

52. GREEN, R.H., <u>Toward ujamaa and kujitegemea: income distribution</u> and absolute poverty eradication aspects of Tanzania transition to socialism. IDS discussion paper, No. 66. Brighton: Institute of Development Studies, University of Sussex, 1974. pp.70.

En Tanzania

53. MASCARENHAS, A.C., SKUTSCH, M., <u>Tanzania country study on rural employment promotion</u>. ILO-WEP/10-2-287. Geneva: ILO, 1976. pp. IV, 116, map, ref and stat. tab..

En Tanzania

International Labour Office, Geneva

Report emanating from the world employment programme on the promotion of rural development and rural employment opportunity in Tanzania - examines various factors such as population and geographic distribution, manpower resources, underemployment, the role of women, agricultural production, the infrastructure of agricultural mechanization and technology, agricultural policies, and the extent of villagization, agricultural cooperatives and attempts an evaluation.

54. RAIKES, P.L., Ujamaa vijijini and rural socialist development.

IDR paper, No. A 74.4. Copenhagen: Institute for Development Research,
1974. pp. 34.

Tanzania

Paper presented at the Annual Social Science Conference of the East African Universities, 1973.

55. KUFANDADA, J., The role of co-operatives in surmounting dualistic structures, the case of Central African States: Zimbabwe, Malawi and Zambia.

En Zimbabwe, Malawi, Zambia Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossen-

schaftswesen, Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany; to be finished in July 1979.

### SITUATION OF THE CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENT IN GENERAL AND BY COUNTRY AND DIFFERENT LEVELS

See also: 48, 50, 66, 168, 170.

of co-operative sector.

ABUL KHEIR, K.H., Structure coopérative en République Arabe d'Égypte. (Co-operative structure in Arab Republic of Egypt.) Revue des Etudes Coopératives, Paris. 1977, 188, 117-123. Fr Egypt

- 57. DERMAN, W., <u>Co-operatives in the Republic of Guinea: problems of revolutionary transformation</u>. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 411-431.
- BUDDHA, K.D., 58. Co-operation in Gujarat - an appraisal. Ahmadabad: Gujarat State Co-operative Union, 1975. pp. 33. India Booklet gives in brief the information relating to the working of cooperative department and co-operatives in Gujarat State, Statistical information of different sectors of the state co-operative movement is also provided for comparative study of the progress of the nation in the field
- DUDIN, M., Co-operative movement in Jordan. Review of International Co-operation, London, 69, 5, 122-136 (1976), stat. tab.
- En, Fr, De, Es Jordan Article on the objectives, structure and development of the Jordan cooperative association - covers the activities of agricultural co-operatives, credit co-operatives and marketing co-operatives.
- BUSU, M.Y.B., Co-operative development in the second Malaysia Plan. Kuala Lumpur: Jabatan Kemajuan Kerjasama, pp. 17. En Malaysia

61. CENTRAL STATISTICAL OFFICE, MINISTRY OF CO-OPERATIVES AND CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT. What's on in the co-operative movement of Mauritius. Port Louis, 1975. pp. 48.

En Mauritius

Central Statistical Office of Mauritius, Port Louis Ministry of Co-operatives and Co-operative Development, Port Louis

62. OFFICE DU DÉVELOPPEMENT DE LA COOPÉRATION. Répertoire des coopératives du Maroc. (Directory of co-operatives in Morocco.)
Rabat, 1976. pp. 105.

Fr

Morocco

63. DEPARTMENT OF CO-OPERATION. Report of co-operative development under new programme. Kätmändu: Department of Co-operatives, 1975. pp. 16.

Εn

Nepal

Progress report of co-operative development in 1972/73 and 1973-1974.

- 64. RAULIN, H., Organized co-operation and spontaneous cooperation in Africa /Niger Republic/. In: Popular participation in social
  change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 35-44.
  En Niger
- 65. BUREAU OF CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT. Overview on the Philippines Co-operatives Development Programme. Quezon City: Bureau of Co-operative Development, 1975. pp. 37.

  En Philippines

Contents: What is the new co-operative development program and its main objectives? Who will implement the co-operative development program Will DLGCD involve the private sector? How would it go about effecting the intents of the programme? How do we describe past efforts at co-operative development in the Philippines? Why did past co-operatives fare badly in this country? What are the chances of the present efforts to promote co-operatives? What are the disciplinary measures to be enforced in the Samahang Nayon? etc.

66. SANCHEZ, A.V. et al., <u>Co-operatives: a direction for progress.</u>

Quezon City: Asia Pillar Publications, 1975. pp. 166.

En Philippines

This is a comprehensive account of the development of the co-operative movement, both in the Philippines and in other part of the world. It

discusses the relationship between co-operatives and agrarian reform and connected problems, leading to an understanting of the responsibilities connected with agrarian laws and co-operatives. The state of land ownership in the country, beginning with pre-Spanish times up to the declaration of martial laws, is presented in an objective manner, resulting in a logical comprehension of the necessity of land reform in the country. Presidential Decree No.27 and Letter of Implementation 143, is fully treated, thus rendering the case of application tenable, both for the reader and the implement or of reform.

67. MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND CO-OPERATIVES. Co-operative development plan of Thailand 1975-1977. Bangkok: Technical Division, Co-operative Promotion Department, Ministry of Agriculture and Co-operatives, 1975. pp. 21.

En Thailand

Following aspects are dealt under the plan: development of agricultural strategies; Development of land settlement co-operatives; Development of consumers' co-operatives; Development of thrift and credit co-operatives; Development of fishery co-operatives; Development of service co-operatives.

68. VINCENT, J., Rural competition and the co-operative monopoly:

A Ugandan case study. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 71-98.

Uganda

### III. CO-OPERATIVE TYPES

### AGRICULTURAL CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 11, 19, 25, 39, 49, 53, 54, 159, 189.

69. FALS BORDA, O., APTHORPE, R., INAYATULLAH, The crisis of rural co-operatives: problems in Africa, Asia and Latin America. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 439-457.

En

Developing countries

70. ALDINGTON, T.J., Report to the Governments of Kenya, Tanzania, Uganda on agriculture co-operation in the East African community. United Nations Development Programme. FAO, No. TA 3258. Rome: FAO, 1974. pp. VI, 37.

En

Africa, East

Food and Agriculture Organization, Rome

71. GARCIA, A., Esquema de la tenencia agraria en América Latina. (Scheme of land ownership in Latin America.) Revista de Mexico Agrario, Mexico. 8, 1, 271-323 (1975).

Es

Latin America

- 72. POSSINGER, H., Ländliche Genossenschaften in Angola. Eine unterbrochenes Experiment. (Rural co-operatives in Angola. The interrupted experiment.)

  Afrika Spectrum, Hamburg. 10, 3, 233-244 (1975).

  Angola
- 73. VESSURI, H.M.C., BILBAO, S., <u>United Workers Ltd., Campode Herrera, Tucuman: The first co-operative for agricultural work in Argentina, five years after its creation.</u> In: Popular participation in social change, Parls La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 211-232.

En

Argentina, Tucuman, Campo de Herrera

74. KAYEMUDDIN, M., <u>Rural co-operative pilot experiment</u>, 13th Annual Report, 1972-73. Comilla: Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, 1975. pp. 65.

En

Bangladesh

75. OBAIDULLAH, A.K.M., A new rural co-operative system for Comilla, Thana. Comilla: Bangladesh Academy for rural Development, 1973. pp. III, 93.

Eπ

Bangladesh

76. OBAIDULLAH, A., Rural co-operative pilot experiment, 12th Annual Report 1971-72. opment, 1975. pp. 87.

En

Bangladesh

77. RAHIM, S.A., <u>Co-operatives and agricultural development in Bangladesh.</u> In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 173-185.

En

Bangladesh

- 78. SOLAIMAN, M., <u>Land-holding and co-operatives in five Comilla</u>

  villages. Comilla: Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, 1974. pp. 7.

  Bangladesh
- 79. PRIETO NOGUERA, G., Chile: evolución de la tenencia de la tierra y desarrollo agricola, periodo 1965-1970. (Chile: evolution of land ownership and agricultural development, period 1965-1970.) Santiago de Chile: Universidad Catolica de Chile, 1975. pp. 162 1.

Es

Chile

Master's thesis.

- 80. HEWLETT, R., MARKIE, J., La coopération agricole, instrument de développement rural: l'exemple de la Chine, du Vietnam, de la Tanzanie et de l'Inde. (Agricultural co-operation, instrument of rural development: the example of China, Vietnam, Tanzania and India.) Réforme agraire. co-opératives et colonisation, Rome. 1976. 2, 46-60.

  Fr. En China, Vietnam, Tanzania, India
- 81. GIL NAVAS, B., Inventario de organizaciones campesinas en Ecuador. (Inventory of peasant organizations in Ecuador.) Desarrollo Rural en las Americas, Bogotá. 8, 1, 51-66 (1976).

  Es Ecuador

Article comprising an inventory of rural associations in Ecuador - includes co-operatives, rural communities, trade unions of rural workers and farmers interest groups.

82. MIRACLE, M.P., SEIDMAN, A., Agricultural co-operatives and quasi-co-operatives in Ghana, 1951-1965. Land Tenure Center Paper No. 51. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1968.

En

Ghana

83. BOSCO PINTO, J., SUAREZ MELO, M., KLAYMAN, M.I., Empresas asociativas campesinas. (Peasant associative enterprises.)
Serie Didactica Proccara, 6. Tegucigalpa, 1975. pp. 212, ref.

Es Honduras

Instituto Nacional Agrario, Tegucigalpa Workers Education teaching aid on collective farming, agricultural cooperatives, moshav structures and other forms of workers self-management in the agricultural sector.

84. HASSAN, H., Les coopératives agricoles dans la structure socioéconomique libanaise. (Agricultural co-operatives in the Lebanese socioeconomic structure.) 1977. pp. 401.

r

Lebanon

Dissertation made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977.

85. FOOD AND AGRICULTURE ORGANIZATION. Kemajuan Koperasi Peladang. (Farmers' Co-operative Malaysia.) Kuala Lumpur: Farmers' Organization Authority, 1975. pp. 61.

Malay, En

Malaysia

Food and Agriculture Organization, Rome

The document has been divided in two parts: The first part in Malay language and the second part in English. On the role of farmers' cooperatives in the economic development of small farmers in Malaysia.

86. GLANTZ, S., El ejido colectivo de Nueva Italia. (<u>The colletctive ejido of Nueva Italia.</u>) Mexico: Instituto Nacional de Antropologia e Historia, Centro de Investigaciones Superiores, 1974. pp. 212.

Es

Mexico

87. KING, R., <u>Farmers co-operatives in Northern Nigeria: a case study used to illustrate the relationship between economic development and institutional change.</u> Zaria; Ahmadu Bello University, Department of Agricultural Economics, 1976. pp. XVI, 305, bibl, gph, stat.tab.

n Nigeria

Monograph comprising a case study of agricultural co-operatives for farmers in six villages of Northern Nigeria, to illustrate the relationship between economic development and changes of institutional framework - presenting a theoretical model.

88. CRUZ, D.A., Comparative study of agricultural co-operatives in Japan and the Philippines. In: Studies in Asian Social Development, No. 2. Delhi: Vikas, 1974. pp. 66-96.

En

Philippines, Japan

89. RENARD, G., Memorandum technique sur le développement coopératif au Rwanda. (Technical memorandum on the co-operative development in Rwanda.) Geneva: International Labour Office, 1977. pp. VII, 86, map, stat. tab.

Fr

Rwanda

ISBN: 92-2-201692-0

Project report comprising a technical report on the development of the co-operative movement in Rwanda - comments on project activities and results in respect of legislation, training, financing, administrative aspects, and includes a summary of conclusions and recommendations.

90. BARKER, J.S., Ujamaa in cash-crop areas of Tanzania: some problems and reflections. Journal of African Studies, Berkeley, 1, 4, 441-463 (1974).

En

Tanzania

91. GORDON, J.U., <u>Ujamaa in Tanzania: problems and prospects.</u> Current Bibliography on African Affairs, Farmigdale, N.Y. 7, 4, 360-377 (1974).

En

Tanzania

92. ZEYDLĖR-ZBOROWSKI, P., Vijiji vya ujamaa. Tanzanijska wies spółdzielcza i jej rola w socjalistycznym rozwoju kraju. (Vijiji vya ujamaa. Tanzanian co-operative village and its role in the socialist development of the country.) Przeglad Informacji o Afryce, Warszawa, 1975. 2, 1-23, map, bibl.

Ρl

Tanzania

The author analyses the socio-economic premises of the ujamaa concept, gives the brief characteristic of the villages and analyses the principles of setting up, the inner structure of village, the problems of performing the policy of ujamaa (with evaluation of present effects) and underlines the role of ujamaa villages in the socialist development of Tanzania.

93. HUNT, D., Structural reform in Tunislan agriculture: the producer co-operatives programme, 1962-1969. Agricultural Administration, Barking, Essex. I. 4, 263-284 (1974).

En

Tunisia

### AGRICULTURAL MARKETING CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 129, 132, 136.

94. INSTITUTE OF CO-OPERATIVE RESEARCH. (Possibilities of setting up marketing co-operatives for grapes and raisin in Takestan Ghagvin.)
Teheran: Teheran University, Institute of Co-operative Research, 1975.
pp. 115.

Persian

Iran

95. KIRUGI, S., Transport activities in marketing co-operatives with special reference to Kenya. pp. 37.

Er

En

Kenya

An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development, Loughborough, University of Loughborough, 1975.

96. KOWITTI, R.H.O., <u>The production extension and marketing of sumflower in Machakos District</u>, Kenya, through the co-operative movement. pp. 36.

Kenya

This unpublished article is available for loan at the Library of Co-operative College, Loughborough, U.K. The author, who worked in the area as a Co-operative Officer analyses problems and prospects for introduction of sunflower as cash crop in an area where it was previously uncommon. The author reviews institutional framework, agronomy, extension and marketing. The article was completed in 1977.

97. OKOTH, C.A.O., Selected problems in the marketing in Kilifi district /Republic of Kenya/ with suggestions for improvement. pp. 35 + bibl.

En Kenya, Kilifi district

An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development, Loughborough, University of Loughborough, 1975.

- 98. BEALS, R.L., The peasant marketing system of Oaxaca, Mexico.
  Berkeley: University of California Press, 1975. pp. IX, 419.
  En Mexico
- 99. ROTH, W.J., <u>Traditional social structure and the development of a marketing co-operative in Tanzania</u>. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 45-54.

  En Tanzania
- 100. ZAMITI, K., The reform of marketing structures in Tunisia: state capitalism or collectivization of the means of exchange. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 459-480. En Tunisia

### CO-OPERATIVE FARMING

See also: 13, 34, 202, 221.

101. REED, E.P., Introducing group farming in less developed countries: some issues.

En Worldwide

Paper from the Group Farming Conference, Madison, 1975.

102. SOBRADO, M.A., Las cooperativas de producción y otras formas asociativas de producción agricola como factores potentiales de cambio en Centroamérica. (Production co-operatives and other associative forms of agricultural production versus the potential factors of change in Central America.) Heredia, 1974. pp. 34.

Es : Central America
Universidad Nacional, Facultad de Ciencias Sociales, Heredia, Costa Rica

103. CHARLETY, J., Apiculture et développement coopératif. La coopération apicole de la Wilaya de Grande Kabylie. (Apiculture and the co-operative development. Apiarian co-operation of the Wilaya region in Great Kabylia.) pp.187.

Fr Algeria, Great Kabylia, Wilaya Diploma made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977.

104. BANGLADESH ACADEMY FOR RURAL DEVELOPMENT. Cooperative farming: a report on Co-operative Farming Seminar held at BARD
from April 24-26, 1972. Comilla, Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, 1972. pp. 208.

En

Bangladesh

105. DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND CO-OPERATION. Report of the Committee on Co-operative Farming in Andhra Pradesh. Hyderabad: Department of Planning and Co-operation, Government of Andhra Pradesh, 1975. pp.265.

En

India

- 106. MEDINA, C., JOSE, R., Ejido como empresa y como causante del impuesto sobre la renta. (Ejido versus enterprise and versus the influence of tax on rent.)

  Revista de Mexico Agrario, Mexico. 8, 1, 181-217 (1975).

  Mexico
- 107. RESTREPO, I., ECKSTEIN, S., Agricultura colectiva en Mexico: la experiencia de la Laguna. (Collective agriculture in Mexico: La Laguna experience.) Mexico: Singlo Veintiumo Editores, 1975. pp. 320, gph, ref, stat.tab.

Es

Mexico

Monograph on collective farming in an agricultural area La Laguna in Mexico - analyses the political aspects and effects on agricultural production of the agrarian reforms of 1936 and 1971, describes the structure and functioning of agricultural co-operatives, compares their efficiency with that of private agricultural enterprises, and sets out the conditions, e.g. competent leadership; for the success of collective farming.

108, FABIYI, Y.L., Co-operative farming in a mode of agricultural development: an interpretation of the experience of Tanzania. n.p. pp. 67 l. En Tanzania

This article is available for loan at Land Tenure Center Library, University of Wisconsin, Madison, Wisc.

109. SUMRA, S., <u>Problems of agricultural production in Ujamaa villages in Handeni district.</u> Dar es Salaam, 1975. pp. 19.

En

Tanzania

Economic Research Bureau, University of Dar es Salaam

110. FAKHFAKH, M., Grande exploitation agricole dans la region Sfaxienne. (Great agricultural exploitation in the Sfax region.) Cahiers, Série Géographique, 3. Tunis, 1976. pp. 294, bibl, gph, map ill, ref, stat. tab.

Fr Tunisia

Centre d'Etudes et de Recherches Économiques et Sociales, Université du Tunis

Agricultural research monograph on extensive farming (large farms) in the Sfax agricultural area of Tunisia. - Desribes the semi-arid climate and soil characteristics including soil erosion; reviews private sector and public sector farming in the region from 1881 to 1956, covers the agrarian structure, the introduction of co-operative farming, modernization of cultivation systems, infrastructure development, the commercialization of agricultural products etc.

111. ROBERTS, R., Role of money in the development of farming in the Mumbwa and Katete Areas of Zambia. Nottingham; University of Nottingham, School of Agriculture, 1972. pp. II, 285, bibl, dgm, gph, ref, and stat tab.

En

### Zambia

Thesis on the financing of agricultural development in Zambia - examines the constraints limiting farmer's investment of their cash savings in farming innovations, and the possibility of introducing co-operative savings and credit co-operative societies to reduce the effects of such constraints.

### AGRICULTURAL PROCESSING CO-OPERATIVES

112. INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ALLIANCE. Regional seminar on "The development of dairy co-operatives in South-East Asia", Anand, Gujarat State, February 3rd-22nd, 1975 /conference documents/. New Delhi: ICA, Regional Office and Education Centre for South-East Asia, 1975.

En Asia, South-East

Conference documents have been divided in two parts: 1. Country papers and 2. Lecture papers. Country papers dealing with the development of dairy co-operatives of following countries were submitted in the conference:

Bangladesh, India, Republic of Korea, Malaysia, the Philippines, Sri Lanka and Thailand.

113. NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION.

Paddy processing by co-operatives. New Delhi: National Co-operative
Development Corporation, 1975. pp. 37.

n India

It contains model schemes for the establishment of 1/4, 1, 2 and 4 tonnes per hour modern rice mills with and without modern par-boiling facility. It gives the details of the requirement of block cost operating economics break-even point of processing, etc. These model schemes are meant to serve as a guide-line for the preparation of project reports for the establishment of modern rice mills.

### FISHERY CO-OPERATIVES

- 114. PONNUTHURAI, K.S., Report on the co-operative fishery movement in Bangladesh. New Delhi: International Co-operative Alliance, Regional Office and Education Centre for South-East Asia, 1975. pp. 74.

  En Bangladesh
- 115. KONG, A.L.K., A note on the organizational structure and modus operandi of Fishermen's Association in Malaysia. Review of Agricultural Economics Malaysia, Kuala Lumpur. 5, 2, 1-12 (1974).

  En Malaysia

This paper attempts to explain the concept and the reasoning behind the establishment of Fishermen's Associations in Malaysia. It also examines the organizational structure of such an association and its method of operation. A brief description is given of the activities of Fishermen's Associations during its full year of operation together with an assessment of their impact on the fishing industry.

### MULTIPURPOSE CO-OPERATIVES

116. FAVZI, R.A., The place of multipurpose co-operatives in integrated rural development. pp. 30 + stat annexes.

En Bangladesh, India

An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development, University of Loughborough, Loughborough, 1974.

### CREDIT AND BANKING CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 172.

117. Agricultural credit institutions in Asia and Latin America. Monthly

Bulletin of Agricultural Economics and Statistics, Rome. 24, 6, 7-19 (1975).

En Developing countries

Previous articles in this Bulletin have examined credit institutions in the

Previous articles in this Bulletin have examined credit institutions in the Near East and Africa and their performance in meeting the financing requirements of smaller farm units. The following paper provides a parallel summary review for Asia and Latin America based on seminars held respectively in Bangkok, 7-18 October 1974 and in Quito, 25-30 November 1974. Since the main substantive issues were dealt with in detail in the first two articles, this paper is confined to presenting tabulations by country of the main institutions concerned and short notes on features and positions specific to Asia and Latin America. Includes also credit cooperatives.

- 118. CHUKWU, S.C., Moderne Kreditsicherung im Rahmen afrikanischer Gesellschaftsordnungen. (Modern credit protection in African cooperative ordinances.) Marburger Schriften zum Genossenschaftswesen.

  Reihe B. Vol. 12. Göttingen: Vanderhoeck and Ruprecht, 1976. pp. XII, 421.

  De Africa
- 119. RUSSI, P., ABBOTT, J.C., Agricultural credit institutions in Asia and Latin America. Monthly Bulletin of Agricultural Economics and Statistics, Rome. 24, 6, 7-19 (1975).

En Asia, Latin America

120. ISLAM, M.S., Credit needs for small farming, small industries and handicraft and mobilization of rural savings - achievements and short-comings in Bangladesh. Economic Bulletin for Asia and the Pacific. 26, 1, 101-116 (1975).

En

Bangladesh

121. AGRICULTURAL REFINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION.

Report of the Committee on Integration of Co-operative Credit Institutions.

Bombay, 1976. pp. 259, flow charts and stat.tab.

En

India

Agricultural Refinance and Development Corporation, Bombay Report on the role of credit co-operatives in providing agricultural credit support to the massive agricultural development programmes in India - includes legal aspects and framework, and a summary of conclusions and recommendations.

122. BHAGAT, M.G., DASGUPTA, S., <u>Developing Adivasis and small farmers</u>. Bombay: National Institute of Bank Management, 1975. pp. 103, statistical data.

En

India

Collection of case studies illustrating the role of commercial banks in financing agriculture in India through provision of agricultural credit to tenant farmers, other small farmers and nomads - includes studies of irrigation schemes, a forestry workers co-operative and tube well schemes in Maharashtra, Bihar, West Bengal and Gujarat.

123. DATEY, C.D., <u>Co-operative Credit.</u> <u>Kerala Co-operative</u>

<u>Digest, Trivandum. 1, 2, 7-22 (1975).</u>

En

India

Contents: The structure; Achievements; Role of Reserve Bank of India; Dependence on refinance; Overdues; Controlling the overdues by Reserve Bank of India.

124. JOSHI, V.H. et al., (Micro-study report on co-operative credit and agricultural development with special reference to Rajkot District in Saurashtra /Gujarat State/ from 1961-62 to 1971-72.) Rajkot: Rajkot District Co-operative Union, 1976. pp. 101.

Gur

India

This research work was entrusted by the District Co-operative Union to the readers in economics in consultation with the Saurashtra University. The purpose of study was to assess the progress of agricultural development and the contribution of present agricultural co-operative credit structure. Its inferences provide a guideline for the role of co-operatives in promoting the well-being of small farmers and weaker sections of society.

PANANDIKER, V.A.P., MEHTA, N.C., Rural banking. Bombay: National Institute of Bank Management, 1974. pp. XII, 179, bibl, stat, tab.

India

En Compilation of articles on the political aspects and economic implications of rural banking in India - examines the role of agricultural credit and agricultural marketing functions in agricultural development, the linkage between agricultural co-operatives and banks and future trends.

- RESERVE BANK OF INDIA. Final report of the Study Team on Co-operative Agricultural Credit Institutions in Maharashtra. Bombay: Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, 1975. pp. 259. En India
- RESERVE BANK OF INDIA. Report of the Committee on Cooperative Land Development Banks. Bombay: Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, 1975. pp. 482.

India

Deals with the land development banking structure in the country especially in nine co-operatively less advanced states and union territories, problems of overdues, management and co-ordination between short-term and longterm credit structure and conclusions and recommendations.

- RESERVE BANK OF INDIA. Report of the Study Team on Agricultural Credit Institutions in Rajasthan. Bombay: Agricultural Credit Department, Reserve Bank of India, 1975. pp. 462. En
- 129. SCHOOL OF SOCIAL SCIENTISTS. Working paper on agricultural co-operation. Hyderabad, 1975. pp. X, 116.

School of Social Scientists, Hyderabad

Working paper on the contribution of credit co-operatives and co-operative marketing to the development of agricultural co-operatives in India.

Financing of small farmers /a study of long-term SINGH, A., credit/. Lucknow: Co-operative Training College, 1976. pp. II, 48. En India

70 per cent of the loans advanced by the branch went to the small and marginal farmers. The common belief that the small and marginal farmers have not been benefited from co-operative long-term agricultural credit does not hold good in view of the above fact. However, there are certain inhibiting factors like psychological fear of risk involved, small land base to sustain the investment costs, cumbersome procedure etc. due to which the small and marginal farmers are not attracted towards co-operative long-term agricultural finance has been discussed in the study.

STRIVASTAVA, D., SING, C.B., Disparities in co-operative credit in India. Journal of Rural Cooperation, Tel Aviv. 3, 2, 111-117 (1975).

En

India

132. KING, R., Experiences in the administration of co-operative credit and marketing societies in northern Nigeria. Agricultural Administration, Barking, Essex. 2, 3, 195-207 (1975). Nigeria

LEON, M., Saving-contributions of the members to their cooperative - an object for social marketing in developing countries, exemplified in the case of Peru.

En Peru Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossenschaftswesen, Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany to be finished in October 1978.

134. CHYAU TUAN, Determinants of financial savings in Taiwanese farmers associations 1960 to 1970. pp. X, 132.

Taiwan

Unpublished PH.D. dissertation, Ohio State University, Columbus, Ohio, 1973.

LELART, M., L'évolution des "credit unions" en Thailande. (Evolution of credit unions in Thailand.) Revue des Etudes Coopératives, Paris. 1977. 188, 2, 93-103. R.

Thailand

136. NURSE, O.M., Synchronization of credit and marketing policies: the case of Trinidad and Tobago. In: Proceedings of the Seminar on Agricultural Policy: a Limiting Factor in the Development Process. Washington: IDB, 1975. pp. 300-313.

Trinidad and Tobago

#### CONSUMER CO-OPERATIVES

137. KUMAR, S., The role of consumer protection in consumer cooperatives with particular reference to India. 1977. pp. 35.

India, United Kingdom En

This unpublished article is available for loan at the Library of Cooperative College, Loughborough, U.K.. The author analyses British experience with consumer protection, the part played by British consumer co-operatives and lessons to be learnt for India. The article was completed in 1977.

138. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE. Iran: development of worker's consumer co-operatives: project findings and recommendations. ILO/IRA/74/011. Geneva: ILO, 1977. pp. 62, flow charts, gph, stat, tab. En Iran

ISBN 92-2-101689-7

Project report on the development of workers consumers co-operatives in Iran - outlines project activities and results in respect of training, management, etc. and includes a summary of conclusion and recommendations.

#### WORKERS PRODUCTIVE CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 37.

MARS, Z., Assistance to small-scale industries in Kerala. Institute of Development Studies Bulletin, Sussex. 6, 1, 55-74 (1974). En India

Contents: The Kerala small scale industries programme; History of programme; The search of criteria; Welfare and commercialization; Research findings Overall distribution implications of the programme. Includes also the role of co-operatives.

140. MATHUR, S.C., Industrial co-operatives - a control study. En India

This is an unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development overseas, Loughborough University, Loughborough, 1972.

SHAH, M.M., Industrial co-operatives in Kaira District /a depth study/. Nadiad: The Kaira District Co-operative Union "Sahakar Bhavan", 1975. pp.214.

En This publication is an attempt to elaborate the industrial co-operative activities of Kaira District of Gujarat State of India which is famous for its dairy co-operatives and is also not lacking behind in other field of cooperatives. Presently there are several industrial co-operatives of weavers, handicrafts, processing, cane and bamboo workers, metal workers, Ivory workers, manufacturing co-operatives of matches, agricultural implements, labour co-operatives of stone-breaking, sand and gravel supply, earth wale, bidi making, labour contract, printing press and industrial estate. The present study deals with the numerical growth of societies and membership, administrative liability, financial growth - structural analysis, production activities, marketing operations, the labyrinth and the way out.

IJERE, M.O., Nigerian experience in promoting handicrafts throught co-operatives. Co-operative Information, Geneva. 52, 2, 25-40 (1976), ref, stat tab. En, Fr, Es Nigeria

Article on experience in handicraft promotion through co-operatives in Nigeria.

143. Pakistan Co-operative Farms Plan. Pakistan Co-operative Review, Lahore. 6, 3, 3-15 (1975).

En Pakistan

Objects of co-operative farming; Contents: What is co-operative farming? Disadvantages of individual farming in small holdings and advantages of cooperative farming. Causes for the failure of co-operative farming in the past; Pilot projects - Demonstrations co-operative farm; Financial aid; Incentive to co-operative farming societies; Role of government; Structure of the co-operative farms; Federation of agricultural co-operative farming societies at provincial and district levels; Councils for co-operation at national, provincial and district level.

144. MENDIS, D., Reorganization of tool and small machine production with co-operatives in Sri Lanka. Development Digest, Washington, 14, 4, 109-115 (1976).

En

Sri Lanka

Article on the reorganization of the machine tool industry through cooperatives in Sri Lanka - disscusses productive co-operatives on the local level and regional level.

#### SERVICE CO-OPERATIVES

- 145. NEB, D.P., Social insurance through co-operatives /a study of social insurance schemes in co-operatives in Indore city/. Indore: International Co-operative Alliance, 1975. pp. 38.
- 146. WEISS BAR-YOSEF, R., ROSENMAN, H., Structural problems of co-operation: the case of an Israeli transport co-operative. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 549-558.
- 147. SETHOM, H., The Tunisian experiment with service co-operatives. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 481-496.

En

Tunisia

# IV. NON-CONVENTIONAL CO-OPERATIVE FORMS

#### TRADITIONAL FORMS OF MUTUAL SELF-HELP ASSOCIATIONS

148. TEXIER, J.M., The promotion of co-operatives in traditional rural societies. Paper for the Second International Seminar on Change in Agriculture, Reading 9th-19th September 1974.

En

Developing countries

1974

149. AGBO, A.V., Paysannat traditionnel et développement rural de l'Atacora. (Traditional peasantry and rural development of Atacora.) pp. 406.

Fr

Benin, Atacora region

Dissertation made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977.

150. GOSSELIN, G., Traditional collectivism and modern association: the example of southern Dahomey. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 55-70.

En

Benin, southern

151. REICHEL-DOLMATOFF, I., Rocha, communauté noire de la côte caratbo-colombienne. (Rocha, black community of the Caribbean-Colombian coast.)

Fr

Colombia

Diploma made at Ecole Pratique des Hautes Etudes, Paris in 1971/72.

152. PONTIE, G., Les Guiziga du Cameroon septentrional, l'organisation traditionnelle et les formes de la contestation. (The Guiziga of North Cameroun, the traditional organization and the forms of contest.) 1970. pp. 331, ill.

Fr

Cameroun

Doctor's thesis at the Université de Lettres, Paris, completed at 1970.

153. WALEWSKI, A., STEFANSKI, B., Quelques remarques sur la production agricole semi-commercialisée du Cameroon, sur l'exemple du groupement de Babadjou. (Some remarks on the semi-commercialised agricultural production in Cameroun, on the example of Babadjou grouping.)

Africana Bulletin, Warszawa. 1974, 21, 207-224, map, stat tab, ref,

Fr Cameroun

The materials to the above article were collected in 1972-73 during the first expedition of Polish students to Africa. The author describes the agricultural policy of Cameroun Government, the geographical environment of the Babadjou grouping, gives some socio-economic characteristics and analyses the agricultural production of the area, with particular reference to the rentability of coffe plantations. The role of co-operatives is also included.

154. DUMOR, E.E.K., The Huza as an indigenous co-operative institution and agricultural extension work in Somanya District. n.p. 1975. 14, VII 1.

En Ghana

Paper for Ghana Sociological Association Conference, Kumasi, 1975.

155. RIVERA, M.-O., Etude monographique d'une communauté rurale maya du Yucatan. (Monographical study of Maya rural community in Yucatan.)
Fr Mexico

Diploma at Ecole Pratique des Hautes Etudes, Paris, 1973/74.

- 156. MAILLART, O., Approche des communautés indiennes des Andes péruviennes. (Approach to the Indian communities of Peruvian Andes.) pp.243.
  - Fr Peru Diploma at École Pratique des Hautes Études, Paris in 1972.
- 157. SABOGAL WIESSE, J.R., Estudios de agricultura tradicional indigena: el Peru. (Studies on traditional indigenous agriculture: Peru.)

  Revista di Agricoltura Subtropicale e Tropicale, Lima. 68, 1-3/4-6,

  117-134 (1974).

Peru

Es

158. PERAULT, P., Traditions villageoises et organisation profesionnelle pour un développement régional chez les paysans de la Bougouriba /Haute-Volta/. (Village traditions and professional organization for regional development amongst the farmers of Bougouriba /Upper Volta/.) 1974. Vol 1-2, annexes. pp. 177 + 178 + 426 + 179.

Fr Upper Volta

Diploma at Ecole Pratique des Hautes Etudes, Paris in 1973/74.

MODERN FORMS OF MUTUAL AND SELF-HELP ASSOCIATIONS, PRE-CO-OPERATIVES

See: 35, 40, 82, 83, 102, 150, 175, 215.

# V. STRUCTURE OF THE CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENT

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CO-OPERATIVE ORGANIZATIONS AT MULTINATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL LEVELS

See also: 136, 144.

159. BEN SALEM, L., <u>Centralization and decentralization of decision-making in an experiment in agricultural co-operation in Tunisia</u>. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 271-288. En

Tunisia

# VI. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF CO-OPERATIVES

#### GENERAL

- 160. DESROCHE, H., Co-operative management. Co-operative Information, Geneva. 52, 3, 19-37, 1976, dgm and ref, En, Fr, Es Worldwide Article based on a conference paper on management of co-operatives suggests a theoretical structure of management composed of: 1. the management of assets, 2. the management of power and decision-making, 3. the management of knowhow, and 4. the management of aspirations.
- 161. MURCIA, H.H., Aspectos administrativos de las empresas comunitarias. (Administrative aspects of community enterprises.) Desarrollo Rural en las Americas, Bogotá. 6, 2, 55-64 (1974). Latin America
- 162. BOJANG, A.M.K., Prevention of theft and fraud in co-operatives with special reference to Gambia. 1976. 52 pp. + 4 annexes. En Gambia An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development,
  - Loughborough, University of Loughborough, 1975/76. Some problems of co-operative administration.

KANGÁ, J.G.,

Indian Journal of Public Administration, New Delhi. 22, 3, 531-538 (1976). India Article discussing management problems within co-operatives in India describes the Indian co-operative movement in its historical context, and views the role of government bureaucracy and the lack of managerial responsibility as major obstacles to efficiency.

164. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE. <u>Lesotho: co-operatives</u> adviser /accounts and management/; project findings and recommendations. ILO-LES/72/008. Geneva: ILO, 1977. pp. 10.

En

Lesotho

ISBN 92-2-101717-6

Project report on activities of the co-operatives adviser in accounting and management in Lesotho - outlines project activities and results, and includes a summary of conclusions and recommendations.

# RULES AND BY - LAWS, INTERNAL. ADMINISTRATION /ACCOUNTING/

See also: 162, 164.

165. MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND CO-OPERATIVES. (By-laws of the Agricultural Co-operatives Ltd.) Bangkok: Technical Division, Department of co-operative Promotion, Ministry of Agriculture and Co-operatives, 1975. pp. 52.

Thai

Thailand

# DEMOCRACY IN CO-OPERATIVES, MEMBER PARTICIPATION AND LEADERSHIP

See also: 22, 188, 193, 220.

166. NASH, J., <u>Worker participation in the nationalized mines of Bolivia 1952-1972</u>. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 559-576.

En Bolivia

167. WINN, P., Workers into managers: worker participation in the Chilean textile industry. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 577-598.

- 168. HOPKINS, N.S., Participatory decision-making and modern cooperatives in Mali: notes towards a prospective anthropology. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 99-112.

  En Mali
- 169. WECK, C. de The practicalities of participation: some problems facing the advisor employed by an integrated system of co-operatives in Peru. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 431-438.

En

Peru

170. GAGNON, G., Co-operatives, participation and development: three failures. In: Popular participation in social change, Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 365-380.

En

Senegal, Cuba, Tunisia

171. EZE OLLAWA, P., Les politiques, les institutions et le développement par la participation dans les regions rurales de la Zambie.

(Politics, institutions and development through participation in rural areas of Zambia.)

Travail et Société. Paris. 2, 3, 247-274 (1977).

Zambia

#### PERSONNEL POLICY

172. BENNACER, A., Les problèmes de personnel dans une banque de développement. (Problems of personnel in a development bank.) 1977. pp. 190.

Fr Algeria

Diploma made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977. Case study of the National Bank of Algeria.

173. GARG, D.P., A case study on present policies and practices personnel management in the Maharashtra State Co-operative Bank Ltd.,

Bombay. Poona: Co-operative Training College, 1975. pp. 41.

En India

# VII. ECONOMICS OF CO-OPERATIVES

## BUSINESS POLICY

See also: 95, 111.

174. MINISTRY OF AGRICULTURE AND CO-OPERATIVES. Report on farm machinery and equipment utilization of members of agricultural co-operatives. Bangkok: Technical Division, Department of Co-operative Promotion, Ministry of Agriculture and Co-operatives, 1975. pp. 97.

En Thailand

A study result of fertilizers, pesticide, insecticide and farm machinery utilization in the co-operative members' fields. Recommendations for improvement are given.

# VIII. SOCIAL FUNCTIONS OF CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 30, 180, 184.

175. DEBELIAN, L., La formation et la jeunesse, la colonisation agraire de jeunes et l'agriculture de groupe en République Centrafricaine. (Formation and youth, agrarian colonisation of young people and group agriculture in Central African Republic.) Réforme Agraire, Co-operatives et Colonisation, Rome. 1976, 2, 85-93.

Fr, En Central African Republic

176. PALA, A.O., REYNOLDS, J.E., WALLIS, M.A.H., Women's group programme in S.R.D.P. Occasional paper No. 13. Nairobi, 1975. pp. 106, ref, stat.tab.

En Kenya
Institute for Development Studies, Nairobi University, Nairobi.
Report on social participation of rural women in Kenya within the framework of interest groups and co-operatives - comprises case studies of six women's groups.

# IX. EDUCATION, TRAINING AND INFORMATION

#### EDUCATION AND TRAINING OF MEMBERS

See also: 17, 51, 187,

MINISTÈRE DE LA FONCTION PUBLIQUE ET DU TRAVAIL DU Rapport du seminaire national sur l'éducation coopérative et la CHAD. promotion socio-économique en milieu rural et ouvrier, Ndjamena, du 2 au 9 Decembre 1975. (Report of national seminar on co-operative training and socio-economic promotion in rural and workmen's environment, Ndjamena, 2-9 December 1975.) Ndjamena, 1975. I vol.

Fr Africa

Ministère de la Fonction Publique et du Travail du Chad Conference report on the contribution of co-operative education to rural development in Africa - explains the role of co-operatives and the importance of education and includes the role of ILO.

- INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE, AREA OFFICE IN SAN JOSÉ. Necesidades basicas, tecnologia y cooperación. (Basic necessities, technology and co-operation.) Cooperación Latinoamericana, Población y Desarrollo No. 6. San José: ILO, 1976. pp. 110.
  - Es Latin America

Working paper on co-operative education and basic training needs of the co-operative sector to meet the requirements of technological change and innovation in Latin America.

179. Co-operative education and training for tribal development. Indian Co-operative Review, New Delhi. 12, 2, 139-150 (1975).

India

Contents: Features of tribal economy, strategy of the development, role of co-operatives, programme of education and training.

En

180. DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SUPPLIES AND CO-OPERATION. Report of the National Seminar on co-operatives and population problems, New Delhi, 16-19 December 1974. New Delhi: Department of Civil Supplies and Co-operation, Government of India, 1975. pp. 125.

Contains the conclusions and recommendations, addresses delivered and the following background papers submitted in the Seminar viz. /1/ Population problems in India by R.G. Srivastava and V.D. Kaura /2/ Population problems in rural India with special reference to agricultural production and rural employment by B.R. Kohli /3/ Co-operatives and population problems by R. Srinivasan and K. Sundararajulu /4/ Population and co-operative education by K.C. Jain and B.D. Sharma /5/ The family planning programme and the co-operative movement in India by Serla Grewal /6/ The role of community development and voluntary agencies in population and family planning by R.N. Azad and N.P. Jain.

181. KAIRA DISTRICT CO-OPERATIVE UNION. <u>Co-operative education</u> and development project. Nadiad: Kaira District Co-operative Union "Sahakar Bhavan", 1975. pp. 58.

India

This is the report on the working of the project for its first year 1974-75. This project was started for providing farm guidance through intensive cooperative education to the members of selected service co-operative of Kaira District and decided to implement it on an experimental basis in Kaira District in 1974.

182. NATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE UNION OF INDIA. All India Conference of Chief Executive and Education Officers of State Co-operative Societies, New Delhi - November 27-28, 1975. New Delhi: National Co-operative Union of India, 1975. pp. 168.

En India

Items proposed to be discussed in the Conference were as follows: 1. Consideration of review of implementation of co-operative education programme. 2. Consideration of restructuring of existing co-operative education programme. 3. Consideration of implementation of co-operative education programme of women and youth. 4. Consideration of financing of state co-operative unions. 5. Consideration of supervision guidance, servicing assessment of co-operative education programme. 6. Consideration of recruitement training and service conditions of co-operative education personnel and consideration of evolving uniform pattern for all states. 7. Consideration of review of the implementation of education programme

for industrial co-operatives. 8. Consideration of special scheme for education in population planning and family welfare through co-operatives. 9. Consideration of special scheme for pilot projects for co-operative education in co-operatively less-developed states. 10. Consideration of draft scheme for pilot project for education in consumers' co-operatives.

183. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE. Nigeria: co-operative education and training in the Cross River State of Nigeria - project findings and recommendations. ILO-NIR/71/012. Geneva: ILO, 1977. pp. 44, stat tab.

En Nigeria

Project report on the establishment of co-operative education and training in the Cross River State of Nigeria - outlines project activities and results in respect of the pilot project on co-operative education, training of counterpart personnel, etc.

184. INTERNATIONAL LABOUR OFFICE, REGIONAL OFFICE FOR AFRICA, MINISTRY OF LABOUR AND SPORTS OF SOMALI REPUBLIC.

National symposium on co-operative education and family welfare and rural development, Mogadishu-Somalia, 25 October - 4 November 1976. Mogadishu, 1976. pp. III, 182, ref, stat. tab.

Somalia

International Labour Office, Regional Office for Africa, Moshi Ministry of Labour and Sports of Somali Republic, Mogadishu. Conference report on co-operative education, family planning and rural development in Somalia - discusses demographic trends in the country, the effects of rapid and unregulated population incraese/incl. on national planning/. Standard of living and employment, ways in which the co-operative movement could contribute to rural and economic development and the role of women in family welfare, education.

185. GRABE, S., <u>Tanzania: an educational program for co-operatives.</u>
In: Education for rural development: case studies for planners. Ed. by
Manzoor, A. and Colmbs, P.H., 1975. pp. 598-616.

En Tanzania

#### TRAINING OF EMPLOYEES

See: 17, 182.

# EDUCATIONAL PROGRAMMES BY INDUSTRIALIZED COUNTRIES FOR CO-OPERATORS FROM DEVELOPING COUNTRIES

- 186. FRANTZ, W., Programmes of co-operative education in developing countries. Methods, contents and aims the Brasilian experience.

  En Developing countries, Brazil
  Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossenschaftswesen, Westfällsche Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany, started in April 1977.
- 187. RANA, J.M., PANDYA, V.N., Le programme d'Indore. Un plan d'éducation sur le terrain sous l'égide de l'ACI et la NCUI (The Indore programme. A plan of co-operative education on place under the auspices of the ICA and NCUI.) Review of International Co-operation, London. 69, 6, 214-224 (1976).

  Fr. En, De, Es India, Indore

# X. CO-OPERATIVES AND THE STATE

#### GENERAL

See also: 45, 64, 65, 100.

188. LAMB, G., Government, co-operatives and peasant agriculture in Kenya. Institute of Development Studies Bulletin, Sussex. 6, 1, 25-36 (1974).

En

Contents: Co-operative leadership, Administrative control as a political strategy.

Kenya

189. STAVENHAGEN, R., Agricultural co-operatives and the government: the case of Mexico: Tel Aviv: CIRCOM, 1974, 24 1.

En Mexico

Paper for International Symposium on Dynamics between Agricultural Cooperatives and the Government, Tel Aviv, 1974.

LAWS, LEGISLATION, DECREES FOR CO-OPERATIVES
AND INFLUENCING CO-OPERATIVES
/INCLUDING TAX REGULATIONS/

See also: 118.

190. FITZPATRICK, P., A new law for co-operatives. Annals of Public and Co-operative Economy, Liège. 46, 3, 227-287 (1975).

En India

Contents: Co-operatives and co-operative law; The administrative environment; The social environment, Internal organization - member's participation; Internal organization: co-operative principles; Internal organization: co-operative goals.

191. BONILLA, F., Legislación Peruana: cooperativas agrarias. (Peruvian legislation: rural co-operatives.) Lima: Editorial Mercurio, 1974. pp. 170.

Es

Peru

192. KIRBERGER, P., Registrar und Genosschenschaftsregisterrichter. Rechtsstellung und Aufgabenbereich nach englischem, tansanischem und deutschem Recht. (The Registrar and co-operative register judge. Legislation possibilities and duties in English, Tanzanian and German law.) Marburger Schriften zum Genossenschaftswesen. Reihe B. Vol. 14. Göttingen: Vanderhoeck and Ruprecht, 1977. pp. XVII, 164.

De

Tanzania, Germany, Great Britain

## CO-OPERATIVES AND LAND REFORM

See also: 1, 4, 10, 79, 93, 225.

193. KING, D., Land reform and participation of the rural poor in the development process of African countries. Land Tenure Center, Paper No. 101. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1974.

En

Africa

- 194. ECKSTEIN, S., CARROLL, T.F., Peasant co-operation in land reform programme: some Latin American experiences. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 233-264. En Latin America
- 195. OLIART, F., Perspectiva de la reforma agraria y de las empresas comunitarias en 1974. (The perspective of the agrarian reformand community enterprises in 1974.) Desarrollo Rural en las Americas, San José. 6, 3, 63-76 (1974).

Es

Latin America

196. AIT AMARA, H., The Algerian model of agrarian reorganization. In: Popular participation in social change. Parts - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 265-270.

En

#### Algeria

197. ZAMAN, M.A., <u>Land reform in Bangladesh to 1970</u>. Land Tenure Center Research Paper No. 66. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University, of Wisconsin, 1976.

En

Bangladesh

198. CHONCHOL, J., <u>The peasant and the bureaucracy in Chilean agrarian reform</u>. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 353-364.

En.

Chile

199. KAY, C., Agrarian reform and the transition to socialism in Chile, 1970-1973. Journal of Peasant Studies, London. 2, 4, 418-445 (1975).

En

Chile

- 200. KAY, C., Types of agrarian reform and their contradictions: the case of Chili. Sociologia Ruralis, Assen. 17, 3, 203-222 (1977).
- 201. THIESENHUSEN, W.C., Chile's experiments in agrarian reform: four colonization projects revised.

  Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1974.

  En Chile
- 202. MORALES, J., The role of productive co-operatives in land reform projects, exemplified in the case of Colombia.

  En Colombia

Research project undertaken under sponsorship of Institut für Genossenschaftswesen, Westfälische Wilhelms-Universität, Münster, Germany, to be finished in December 1977.

203. RADWAN, S., <u>Impact of agrarian reform on rural Egypt /1952-75/.</u> ILO-WEP 10-6/WP-13. Geneva: International Labour Office, pp. 83, ref, stat tab.

En

Egypt'

International Labour Office, Geneva

Working paper on the impact of agrarian reform on rural development in Egypt from 1952 to 1975 - constitutes part of a World Employment Prog-

ramme Research Project on Rural Employment Policy, and discusses the effects of agrarian reform on land ownership and income distribution and the role of co-operatives in rural development.

- 204. OTTAWAY, M., Land-reform and peasant associations: a preliminary analysis. Rural Africana. 1975, 28, 39-54. En Ethiopia
- 205. PARSONS, K.H., Agrarian reform in Southern Honduras. Land Tenure Center Research Paper No. 67. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1976.

En Honduras

- 206. MUGO, J.F., Land settlement in Gezira /Sudan/ and Israel and their lesson for Kenya. pp. 37.
  - En Kenya, Sudan, Israel An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development,

An unpublished dissertation for a diploma in co-operative development Loughborough, University of Loughborough, 1975.

- 207. STAVENHAGEN, R., Reforma agraria y alternativas institutionales en la agricultura: el case del ejido mexicano. (Agrarian reform and institutional alternatives in agriculture: the case of Mexican ejido.) Revista de Mexico Agrario, Mexico. 8, 2, 11-48 (1975).

  Es Mexico
- 208. AGHA, S.H., FRITHJOF, K., Land tenure and rural development in Pakistan.

  Land Reform, Land Settlement and Co-operatives, Rome.

  1974, 1/2, 52-67.

En Pakistan

The objectives of this paper are: to describe the various forms of land tenure in Pakistan, co-operatives included, and to analyse the problem arising from them; to determine the impact of recent technological changes on the land tenure situation - to assess the likely impact of the Land Reform Regulation of 1972; to assess the effects of present land tenure systems on rural development, i.e. production, welfare and the Integrated Rural Development Programme /IRDP//from the introduction/.

209. ALDERSON-SMITH, T., Peasant response to co-operativization under agrarian reform in communities of the Peruvian Sierra. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris - La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 113-156. En

210. EGUREN LOPEZ, F., Reforma agraria, cooperativización y lucha campesina, el Valle Chancay-Huaral. (Agrarian reform, co-operativization and peasant struggle, Chancay-Huaral Valley.) Lima: Centro de Estudios y Promoción de Desarrollo 1975. pp. 239.

Es Peru

- 211. KHADER, B., Propriété agricole et réforme agraire en Syrie.

  (Agricultural ownership and agrarian reform in Syria.) Civilisations, Paris.

  25, 1/2, 62-83 (1975).

  Fr Syria
- 212. CHANG, Y.T., Land reform and agricultural development:

  Tatwan's experience. Nung Yeh Ching Chi, Tatchung, 1974, 16, 106-119.

  En Tatwan
- 213. FRANCO GARCIA, J.M., Situación actual del sector agricola y de la reforma agraria en Venezuela. (Present situation of agricultural sector and agrarian reform in Venezuela.) Derecho y Reforma Agraria

  Revista. 6, 6, 95-119 (1975).

  Es Venezuela

SPECIAL ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT GIVEN BY GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES /SUBSIDIES, PRIVILEGES, ETC./

See: 67, 139, 143.

# XI. EXTERNAL RELATIONS OF CO-OPERATIVE MOVEMENTS

See also: 28, 81.

214. DANDLER, J., Peasant sindicates and the process of co-operation in Bolivian politics.

La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 341-352.

En Bolivia

215. PARTHASARATHY, G., RAMANA, K.V., <u>Peasant organizations</u>
<u>in Razole: a case study in Andhra Pradesh, India.</u>
Waltair Andhra University,
1975. pp. IV, 126, 12 1., stat. tab.

India

Report on a study of rural workers' trade unions, peasant movements and organizations to promote rural co-operative activity in the Razole District of Andhra Pradesh, India.

# XII. INTERNATIONAL CO-OPERATIVE ACTIVITIES

216. GIMENEZ LANDINES, V., La FAO y el derecho agrario en Latinoamerica. (FAO and agrarian law in Latin America.) Derecho y Reforma Agraria Revista. 6, 6, 69-93 (1975).

En Latin America

### XIII. SUBJECTS RELATED TO CO-OPERATIVES

See also: 166, 151, 153, 155, 214.

217. MAROUF, N., Implications socio-juridiques et économiques de la propriété foncière indivise en Algérie. (Economical and socio-juridical implications of the indivisible land property in Algeria.)

r Algeria

Diploma made at Ecole Pratique des Hautes Etudes, Paris in 1970/71.

- 218. HAGNILO, F., Politique de formation agricole et collectivités rurales au Benin /province du Zou/. (The policy of agricultural formation and rural collectivities in Benin /province of Zou/.) pp. 207.
  - Fr Benin, Zou province

Diploma made at Ecole des Hautes Etudes en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977.

- 219. SIMPSON, G., Aspects socio-politiques des plans de colonisation agraire et leurs incidences sur le développement en Ethiopie. (Socio-political aspects of rural colonization planning and their impact on the development of Ethiopia.) Réforme agraire, co-operatives and colonisation, Rome. 1976, 2, 35-45.
  - Fr, En Ethiopia
- 220. L'autogestion au kibbutz. (Self-management in kibbutz.) Esprit,
  Paris. 1977. 3, 399-412.

  Fr Israel
- 221. LEVIATAN, U., <u>The process of industrialization in the Israeli kibbutzim</u>. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 520-548.

En Israel

222. ROZENKIER, A.B., Continuité et/ou discontinuité dans les attitudes de la seconde génération du kibbutz. (Continuity and discontinuity in attitudes of the second kibbutz generation.) 1977. Vol.1, pp. 231, Vol.2. pp 232-538.

Fr Israel

Diploma made at Ecole Pratique en Sciences Sociales, Paris in 1977.

- 223. ALBERTI, G., Persistence and change in structure and values in the sugar plantations of Northern Peru. In: Popular participation in social change. Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 197-210.

  En Peru
- 224. MAKHLOUF, E., Political and technical factors in agricultural collectivization in Tunisia. In: Popular participation in social change.

  Paris La Haye: Mouton, 1976. pp. 381-410.

  Proposition of the proposition of th

# XIV. RESEARCH

225. ANDERSON, T.J., Sources for legal and social science research on Latin America: land tenure and agrarian reform. Land Tenure Center Training and Methods No. 11. Madison, Wisc.: Land Tenure Center, University of Wisconsin, 1970.

En

Latin America

226. VAIKUNTH MEHTA NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF CO-OPERATIVE MANAGEMENT. Research in co-operation - a review. Poona: Vaikunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, 1975. pp. 261.

En India

The book critically reviews the entire literature on Indian co-operative movement. Various faculty members of this Institute specialising in various sectors of the co-operative movement have contributed exhaustive reviews of their field of specialization. The volume contains a full bibliography and index.

AUTHOR INDEX



Α

С

Abbott, J.C. 119
Abul Kheir, K.H. 56
Agarwal, R.D. 12
Agbo, A.V. 149
Agha, S.H. 208
Ahmad Sarji Bin Abdul Hamid 49
Alt Amara, H. 196
Alberti, G. 223
Alderson-Smith, T. 209
Aldington, T.J. 70
Amuam, A. 41
Ananogbe, K. 29
Anderson, T.J. 225
Apthorpe, R. 69
Azad, R.N. 180

В

D

Barker, J.S. 90
Baviskar, B.S. 43
Beals, R.L. 98
Ben Salem, L. 159
Bennacer, A. 172
Bennett, J.W. 13
Bhagat, M.G. 122
Bilbao, S. 73
Bojang, A.M.K. 162
Bonilla, F. 191
Borstein, V.J. 40
Bosco Pinto, J. 83
Buddha, K.D. 58

Busu, M.Y.B. 60

Dandler, J. 27, 214
Dasgupta, S. 122
Datey, C.D. 123
Davidovič, G. 14
Debelian, L. 175
Derman, W. 57
Desroche, H. 160
Don, Y. 46, 47
Dudin, M. 59
Dumor, E.E.K. 154

Calvert, P. 16

Carroll, T.F. 194 Chang, Y.T. 212

Chaparro, A. 30 Charlety, J. 103

Chonchol, J. 198 Chukwu, S.C. 118

Chyau Tuan, 134 Cruz, D.A. 88

E

Eckstein, S. 107, 194 Eguren Lopez, F. 210 Eze Ollawa, P. 171 66 (Author index)

1

K

F

Fabiyi, Y.L. 108

Fakhfakh, M. 110

Fals Borda, O. 69

Favzi, R.A. 116

Feder, E. 31

Fitzpatrick, P. 190

Franco Garcia, J.M. 213

Frantz, W. 186

Frithjof, K. 208

Jain, K.C. 180

Jain, N.P. 180

Jain, N.P. 180 Jose, R. 106 G Joshi, V.H. 124

Gagnon, G. 22, 170
Garcia, A. 32, 71
Garg, D.P. 173
Gil Navas, B. 81
Gimenez Landinez, V. 216
Giovenardi, E.P. 20
Glantz, S. 86
Gordon, J.U. 91
Gosselin, G. 150
Grabe, S. 185
Green, R.H. 52

Н

Hagnilo, F. 218
Hanel, A. 45
Hassan, H. 84
Hazela, T.N. 18
Hewlett, R. 80
Hopkins, N.S. 15, 27, 168
Huizer, G. 33
Hunt, D. 93

Kanga, J.G. 163
Kaura, V.D. 180
Kay, C. 199, 200
Kayemuddin, M. 74
Keatinge, E.B. 35
Khader, B. 211
Khan, M. 21
King, D. 193
King, R. 87, 132
Kirberger, P. 192
Kirugi, S. 95
Klayman, M.I. 83
Kohli, B.R. 180
Kong, A.L.K. 115
Kowitti, R.H.O. 96
Kufandada, J. 55
Kumar, S. 137
Kürschner, F. 23

(Author index)

Lamb, G. 188 Lelart, M. 135 Leon, M. 133 Levi, Y. 19 Leviatan, U. 221 Louis, R. 24 Lulseged Asfaw. 42 Obaidullah, A. 76
Obaidullah, A.K.M. 75
Okoth, C.A.O. 97
Oliart, F. 195
Ongeso, P.I. 38
Ottaway, M. 204

M

L

Maillart, O. 156
Makhlouf, E. 224
Markie, J. 80
Marouf, N. 217
Mars, Z. 139
Mascarenhas, A.C. 53
Mathur, S.C. 140
Medina, C. 106
Mehta, N.C. 125
Mendis, D. 144
Miracle, M.P. 82
Moore, M.P. 25
Morales, J. 202
Mugo, J.F. 206
Murcia, H.H. 161
Müller, J.O. 45

Pala, A.O. 176
Panandiker, V.A.P. 125
Pandya, V.N. 187
Parsons, K.H. 205
Parthasarathy, G. 215
Perault, P. 158
Ponnuthurai, K.S. 114
Pontie, G. 152
Possinger, H. 72
Prieto Noguera, G. 79

R

Nash, J. 15, 27, 166 Neb, D.P. 145

Nurse, O.M. 136

Radwan, S. 203
Rahim, S. A. 77
Raikes, P. L. 54
Ramana, K. V. 215
Rana, J. M. 187
Raulin, H. 64
Reddy, G. R. 44
Reed, E. P. 101
Reichel-Dolmatoff, I. 151
Renard, G. 89
Restrepo, J. 107
Reynolds, J. E. 176
Rivera, M-O. 155

0

P

67

Roberts, R. 111

Sum ra, S. 109

Sundararajulu, K. 180

Т

Zeydler-Zborowski, P. 92

Rosenman, H. 146 Roth, W.J. 99 Rozenkier, A.B. 222 Russi, P. 119 Tehami, A. 37 Texier, J.M. 148 Thiesenhusen, W.C. 201 S ٧ Sabogal Wiesse, J.R. 157 Sanchez, A.V. 66 Vessuri, H.M.C. 73 Sattar, G. 39 Vincent, J. 68 Seidman, A. 82 Sethom, H. 147 Shah, M.M. 141 W Sharma, B.D. 180 Simpson, G. 219 Sing, C.B. 131 Singh, A. 130 Walewski, A. 153 Wallis, M.A.H. 176 Skutsch, M. 53 Weck, C. 169 Weiss Bar-Yosef, R. 146 Smith, Ch.L. 2 Sobrado, M.A. 102 Solaiman. M. 78 Srinivasan, R. 180 Winn, P. 167 Srivastava, R.G. 180 Z Stavenhagen, R. 50 189, 207 Stefanski, B. 153 Strivastava, D. 131 Zaman, M.A. 197 Suarez Melo, M. 83 Zamiti, K. 100

(Authors index) 69

# CORPORATE AUTHORS

BANGLADESH			INDIA
	Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development, Comilla	104	Government of India Department of Civil Supplies and Co-operation, New Delhi 180
CH	CHAD		National Co-operative Devel-
	Ministère de la Founction Publique et de Travail du Chad.		opment Corporation, New Delhi 113
	Chad, Ndjamena	177	National Co-operative Union of India, New Delhi 48, 182
COS	STA RICA		10, 102
	International Labour Office Area Office in San José, San José 17, 34,	4. 178	Reserve Bank of India, Agricultural Credit Department, Bombay 126, 127, 128
FIJ		•	School of Social Scentists, Hyderabad 129
	South Pacific Commission, Suva	36	Valkunth Mehta National Institute of Co-operative Management, Poona 226
IND	IA		Kaira District Co-operative Union
	Agricultural Refinance and Development Corporation,		Nadiad 181
	Bombay	121	IRAN
	Government of Andhra Prad Department of Planning and Co-operation, Hyderabad	lesh,	Teheran University Institute of Co-operative Research, Teheran 94
	International Co-operative		ITALY
	Alliance /I.C.A./ Regional Office and Educati Centre for South-East Asia New Delhi		Food and Agriculture Organization /FAO/, Rome 85

70 (Authors index)

MAURITIUS	TANZANIA				
Central Statistical Office, Port Louis	61	ILO Regional Office for Africa, Moshi 184			
Ministry of Co-operatives and Co-operative Development,		THAILAND			
Port Louis	61	Ministry of Agriculture and Co-operatives, Technical			
MOROCCO		Division, Co-operative			
Office du Développement de la Coopération,		Promotion Department, Bangkok 67, 165, 174			
(Co-operative Development Office).		UNITED KINGDOM			
Rabat	62	International Co-operative Alliance /ICA/,			
NEPAL		London 9			
Department of Co-operation, Katmandu	63	U.S.A.			
PHILIPPINES	00	Agricultural Co-operative Development International, Washington 26			
Bureau of Co-operative Development,		University of Wisconsin,			
Quezon City	65	Land Tenure Center, Madison, (Wisconsin)			
SOMALIA		1, 3, 4, 5, 6,			
Ministry of Labour and Sports of Somali Republic, Mogadishu	184	7, 8, 10, 42			
SWITZERLAND					
International Labour Office /ILO/,					
Geneva 28, 36, 51, 138, 16 183	54,	*.7 <u>.</u> f			

GEOGRAPHICAL

INDEX

AFRICA 1, 118, 177, 193
Africa, East -- 70
Africa, French-speaking -- 28
Africa, North -- 1
Africa, South -- 1
Africa, West -- 1, 29

AMERICA 2
Caribbean 5
Central America 102

Latin America 16, 17, 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 71, 119, 161, 178, 194, 195, 216, 225

OCEANIA 36

ASIA 3, 119
Asia, South -- 3
Asia, South-East -- 33, 112
Near East 3

DEVELOPING COUNTRIES 27, 69, 117, 148, 186

WORLDWIDE 12, 13, 14, 15, 24, 25, 26, 101, 160

Α

Algeria 37, 172, 196, 217 Algeria, Great Kabylia, Wilaya 103 Angola 72 Argentina, Tucuman 73

В

Bangladesh 38, 39, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, 104, 112, 114, 116, 120, 197

Bangladesh, Comilla District 38

Benin Republic /south/ 150

Benin, Atacora region 149

Benin, Zou province 218

Bolivia 166, 214

Brazil 4, 186

Brazil, Fase 40

С

Cameroum 41, 152, 153 Central African Republic 175

Chile 6, 79, 167, 198, 199, 200, 201 China 80 Colombia 7, 151, 202 Cuba 22, 170

D

Dahomey see:

Benin Republic

E

Ecuador 8, 81 Egypt 56, 203 Ethiopia 42, 204, 219

L G Gambia 162 Lebanon 84 Germany, Federal Republic of --Lesotho 164 192 Ghana 82, 154 M Guinea 57 Malawi 55 Malaysia 49, 60, 85, 112, 115 Н Mali 168 Mauritius 61 Honduras 83, 205 Mexico 10, 50, 86, 98, 106, 107, I 155, 189, 207 Morocco 62 N India 9, 18, 44, 48, 58, 80, 105, 112, 113, 116, 121, 122, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128, 129, 130, 131, 137, 139, 140, 141, 145, 163, 173, 179, 180, 181, Nepal 63 Niger 64 Nigeria 87, 132, 142, 183 182, 190, 215, 226 P India, Indore 187 Pakistan 21, 143, 208 Peru 133, 156, 157, 169, 191, India, Maharashtra State 43 Iran 45, 94, 138 209, 210, 223 Philippines 65, 66, 88, 112 Israel 19, 46, 47, 146, 206, 220, 221, 222 R Rhodesta J see: Zimbabwe Rwanda 51, 89 Japan 88 Jordan 59 K

Kenya 20, 38, 95, 96, 176, 188,

Kenya, Kilifi district 97 Korea, Republic of -- 112

206

Senegal 22, 170 Somalia 184

Sudan 206 Syria 211

Sri Lanka 112, 144

Т

v

Taiwan 134, 212

Venezuela 11, 213 Vietnam 80

Tanzania 20, 23, 52, 53, 54, 80, 90, 91, 92, 99, 108, 109, 185, 192

Z

Thailand 67, 112, 135, 165, 174

Trinidad and Tobago 136 Zambia 55, 111, 171

Tunisla 22, 93, 100, 110, 147, 159, 170, 224

Zambia 55, 111, 171

Zimbabwe /Rhodesia/ 55

U

Uganda 20, 68 United Kingdom 137, 192 Upper Volta 158

SUBJECT

INDEX

A	agricultural production co-operative
accounting, co-operative 164	agriculture 109, 223 apiculture, co-operative 103
administration, business 161 administration, co-operative 132, 163, 188	В
agrarian reform 4, 10, 56, 66, 107, 196, 198, 199, 200, 201,	by-law of co-operative 165
203, 205, 207, 209, 210, 211, 213, 219, 225	С
agrarian structure 13, 93, 110,	collective farming 83, 107 community development 40
agricultural collectivization 50 agricultural co-operative 13, 26,	consumer co-operative 67, 137, 138 co-operative bank 123, 125, 173
27, 31, 39, 56, 59, 70, 77, 78, 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85,	co-operative credit 123, 124, 131, 132
87, 88, 103, 107, 125, 129, 159, 165, 174, 189	co-operative credit institution 121, 126
see also:	see also:
collective farming	co-operative bank
ejido	co-operative development 20, 97,
farmers' co-operative	140, 148, 206
kibbutz	co-operative development project
moshav	65, 74, 76, 89, 93, 143, 164
rural co-operative	co-operative enterprise 12
agricultural credit 121, 122, 125,	co-operative farming 104, 105, 108,
126, 130, 136	110, 143
agricultural credit co-operative 124	co-operative organization 62, 143,
agricultural credit institution 117,	144, 169, 190
119, 128	see also:
agricultural development 5, 8, 25,	structure, co-operative
26, 30, 42, 50, 53, 77, 79, 111,	co-operative principle 190
124, 180, 212, 213	see also:
agricultural development project 121	theory, co-operative
agricultural economics 6	co-operative; role in development
agricultural extension 96, 154	17, 24, 34, 36, 38, 41, 48, 55,
agricultural labourer, landless	60, 61, 63, 65
208	co-operative; role in society 17, 24
agricultural marketing co-operative	32, 43, 70, 177
94	co-operative; situation of the move-
	ment in general 56, 59, 61, 63, 66, 67

80 (Subject index)

co-operative socialism 92

credit co-operative 59, 67, 111,

117, 121, 129, 132

see also:
 rural credit co-operative

credit through co-operative 131

credit policy 118

credit union 135

D

dairy co-operative 112, 141 decision-making 159, 168 deficiency, co-operative -- 65, 170 development planning 48 development project 39, 51, 138, 139, 175, 181, 201, 219

E

economic development 28, 34, 37, 87, 200
economics 12
efficiency 107
ejido 86, 106, 207
employment 30, 47, 53, 142, 180

F

family planning 36, 180, 184
family welfare 184
farmer, small -- 85, 120, 143
farmers' association 13, 15, 35,
134, 158, 204, 214, 215, 224
farmers' co-operative 49, 85, 87
financing, agricultural -- 111, 122,
131
financing small farmer 124, 130
fishermen's co-operative 67, 114
fishery 115
forestry co-operative 122

G

group farming 101, 175 see also: collective farming

Н

handicraft 48, 142
handicraft co-operative 141
history of co-operative movement
56, 163

T

income distribution 203
indigenous association 156
indigenous co-operative 154
industrial co-operative 56, 140, 141, 144
industrial development 139
industrialization 46, 47, 221
industry, small scale 48, 120, 139, 142
integrated rural development see:

rural development, integrated integration, co-operative -- 29 intermediate technology 37 international collaboration 29, 216 irrigation project 122

K

kibbutz 46, 220, 221, 222

L

land development bank, co-operative -- 127 land ownership 42, 66, 71, 79, 203, 211, 217, 225 (Subject index) 81

land reform 2, 193, 194, 195, 197, peasant co-operative 194 peasant movement 33, 35, 210, 215 202, 204, 212 land settlement 206 personnel management 173 land settlement co-operative 67 personnel policy 172 land tenure 10, 16, 78, 208 policy, influencing co-operative 45, legislation, co-operative -- 66, 89, 70, 153, 188 190, 191, 192, 216 poverty 31 see also: production co-operative 34, 93, 102, by-law of co-operative 144, 202 production, promotion by co-operative M 142 project evaluation 51, 183, 219 protection of consumer 137 management 107, 138, 160, 163, 164, 188 see also: Q personnel management management, co-operative farm -- 21 quasi-co-operative marketing agricultural product 96, 97. 98. 100. 110 R marketing co-operative 59, 95, 99, 132 relation in the co-operative 174 marketing, co-operative -- 129 relation, co-operative -- with member education 177, 178, 181, government 31, 45, 58, 64, 182 143, 163, 188, 189 members' attitude 222 moshav 47, 83 relation, inter-co-operative -- 24 religion, role of religion in comotivation 21 operation 135 multipurpose co-operative 116 reorganization of co-operative 144 research 225, 226 rice mill, co-operative -- 113 rural community 46, 68, 81, 155, 218 obstacle of co-operative development rural co-operative 19, 21, 45, 69, 162, 163 72, 74, 75, 76, 153, 191, 208, organization of co-operative 209, 210, 224 215 see also: rural credit co-operative 135 rural development 1, 11, 44, 47, 51, 53, 54, 80, 149, 177, 180, 184, reorganization of co-operative structure, co-operative --193, 200, 203, 208, 219 P rural development, integrated 38, 49, 116, 208 participation 166, 167, 168, 169, rural institution 148 170, 171, 176, 190, 193 rural worker 30

S

savings 111
saving mobilization 120, 133
self-government, co-operative -15, 22, 220
service co-operative 67, 145, 147,
181
social development 32, 52, 135
social structure 99
socio-economic development 32,
57, 67, 69, 92, 153, 178, 179
sociology 160
statistics 58
structure, co-operative -- 64, 75,
92, 143, 146
supervision 188

Т

theory, co-operative -- 12, 14,

15, 18, 27, 80, 87, 160
see also:
 co-operative principle
trade union 28, 81, 215
traditionalism 149, 158
traditional association 81, 83, 102,
 150, 151, 152, 157, 179
training 17, 21, 51, 56, 89, 138,
 175, 180, 183, 184, 218
training of co-operative personnel
 177, 182

training facility 9
training programme 17, 175, 179,
182, 183, 185, 186, 187
transport by co-operative 95
transport co-operative 146
type, co-operative -- 19
typology of co-operation 19

U

ujamaa village 23, 52, 54, 90, 91, 92, 109 unemployment 31, 34

W

weaker section 124
weavers' co-operative 141
women, education of -- 182
women in the co-operative 176

Y

youth 175 youth, education of -- 182

LIST
OF
CORRESPONDENTS



Cr Juan Jose Carrizo
Gabinete Universitario de
Documentación y
Extensión Cooperativa,
Universidad Nacional der Sur,
12 de Octubre y Peru - Piso 8º
Bahia Blanca
ARGENTINA

J.S. Nalson
Professor of Sociology
University of New England
Sociology Department
Armidale
New South Wales, 2351
AUSTRALIA

Prof. W. Weber
Principal
Forschungsinstitut für
Genossenschaftswesen an der
Universität Wien
Dr. Karl-Lueger Ring, 1.
A-1000 Wien 1.
AUSTRIÄ

Mr. A.B.M. Nurul Huq Librarian Bangladesh Academy for Rural Development P.O. Kotbari Comilla BANGLADESH

Mr. M.S. Haq
Project Officer
Co-operative Statistics and
Research Organization
Co-operative Department
Registrar of Co-operative
Societies
9-D Motijheel Commercial Area
Dacca - 2.
BANGLADESH

Mevr. A.M. Wolters-Vloeberghs
Public Relations
Rectoraat
Adoiphe Buyllaan 105
1050 Brussels
BELGIUM

Prof. A. Godart
Université Libre de Bruxelles
Institut de Sociologie
Avenue Jeanne - 44,
B. 1050 Brussels
BELGIUM

Poro. Julio Tumiri Javier
Director
Departamento de Fomento
Cooperativo
Yanacocha 545
Casilla Correo 3077
La Paz
BOLIVIA

Mr. E.B. Loveridge
Project Manager
Co-operative Development Centre
P. O. B. 86
Gaberones
BOTSWANA

Monsieur le Directeur National du Centre National de Développement des Enterprises Coopératives P. O. B. 120 Yaounde CAMEROUN

Monsieur le Directeur de la Coopération el de la Mutualité P. O. B. 440
Yaounde
CAMEROUN

Mr. Olaf A. Turnbull
Executive Director
Cooperative College of Canada
141 - 105th Street
Saskatoon
Sask. S7N 1N3
CANADA

Mr. Leonard Harman
Cooperative Union of Canada
111 Sparks Street
Ottawa 4.
Ontario K1P 5B5
CANADA

Mr. M. Roch Bastien

Director

Institute de recherche
et d'enseignement
pour les coopératives
/IRECUS/
Université de Sherbrooke,
Sherbrooke /Qué/
J1K 2R1
CANADA

Professor J.C. Craig
Department of Sociology and
Anthropology
York University
4700 Keele Street
Downsview M
Ontario
CANADA

Mr. G.E. Topshee
Director
Coady International Institute
St. Francais Xavier University,
Antigonish, Nova Scotia
CANADA

Sr. Juan Miguel Cartajena
Centro para el Desarrollo
Económico y Social de
América Latina /DESAL/
Carmen Silva 2542
Casilla 9990
Santiago de Chile
CHILE

Sr. Juan Carlos de la Jara C.
Jefe de Investigacionen
Centro de Estudios Cooperativos
de la Universidad Católica
/CECUC/
Casilla 114-D
Santiago de Chile
CHILE

Don Fernando Saa Contreras Maria Luisa Santander No. 0420 Santiago de Chile Casilla 13755 CHILE

Sr. Caston Daroch Gonzalez

Servicio de Cooperación Técnica

Departamento de Desarrollo
Cooperativo

Huérfanos 1117-1147

9º piso
Santiago
CHILE

Mr. Fernando Urrea G.

Director Unidad de Investigación
Instituto Universitario de

Economía Social y Cooperativism
/Indesco/
Avda, Caracas No. 37-47
Bogotá, D.E.
COLOMBIA

Mr. C.M. Londono M.

Director
Instituto de Educación e
Investigación Cooperativa
Universidad de Santo Tomás
Carrera 9a. No. 51-23,
Bogotá 2, D.E.
COLOMBIA

Sr. Mario Ortiz de la Roche
Superintendencia Nacional de
Cooperativas
Avenida Jimenez 14-42
Bogotá
COLOMBIA

Mr. M.J. Galrae
Acting Director
Instituto Interamericano de
Ciencias Agricolas de la OEA
Turrialba
COSTA RICA

Mr. Sixto Davalos C.
Cooperativa de Seguros del
Ecuador Ltda
Baquedano 358
Apartado 2062
Quito
ECUADOR

Centre d'Etudes Coopératives de la Haute Savoie /groupe Fauquet/, 64 avenue de France, Annecy 74000 FRANCE

Prof. Henri Desroche
Centre de Recherches Coopératives
Le Collège Coopératif
7 Avenue Franco-Russe
Paris 7ème
FRANCE

Dr. W. Kruger
Verband der Konsumgenossenschaften der DDR,
Stresemannstrasse 128
108 Berlin
GERMAN DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC

Mr. W. Haasper
Institut für ländliches
Genossenschaftswesen
Justus Liebig-Universität
Giessen
Landgraf-Philipp-Platz 4.
63 Giessen
FED. REP. GERMANY

Klaus-Peter Treydte
Forschungsinstitut der
Friedrich Ebert Stiftung,
Kölner Str. 149.
53 Bonn-Bad Godesberg
FED. REP. GERMANY

Prof. Dr. Frithjof Kuhnen
Director
Institut für Ausländische
Landwirtschaft, der
Georg-August Universität
Göttingen,
Büsgenweg 2,
34 Göttingen
FED. REP. GERMANY

Prof. Dr. G. Weisser
Forschungsinstitut für
Gesellshcaftspolitik und
Beratende Socialwissenschaft e.V.
an der Universität
Göttingen
Benfeyweg 8,
34 Göttingen
FED. REP. GERMANY

Prof. Dr. Th. Bergmann
Forschungsstelle für
Genossenschaftswesen an der
Universität Hohenheim,
D 7000 Stuttgart 70
Schwerzstrasse
FED. REP. GERMANY

Dr. D. W. Benecke
Institut für Genossenschaftswesen an der
Universität Münster,
D 44 Münster
Am Stadtgraben 9.
FED. REP. GERMANY

Arnold Bergstraesser Institut für
Kulturwissenschaftliche Forschung
78 Freiburg
Erbprinzenstrasse 11
FED. REP. GERMANY

Dipl.Kfm. Rolf Konold
Forschungsinstitut für
Genossenschaftswesen an der
Universität Erlangen-Nürnberg
Krankenhausstr. 1-3.
852 Erlangen,
FED. REP. GERMANY

Dr. O.C. Kirsch
Forschungsstelle für Internationale Agrarentwicklung e.V.
Kurfürsten Anlage 59.
Heidelberg
FED. REP. GERMANY

Frau Gertrud Schröder
Deutsche Stiftung für
Entwicklungsländer,
Zentrale Dokumentation,
D 53 Bonn 1. Edenicher Str. 41.
FED. REP. GERMANY

Mr. David Owusu
Research Director,
Ghana Cooperatives Council Ltd.
Secretary-General's Office,
P. O. B. 2068
Accra
GHANA

Lic. Blanca Lila Villela
Jefe de la Seccion de Educación
y Divulgación,
P.M. Julia Maria Matamoros
Jefe de la Seccion de Registro
de Cooperativas, Dirección de
Fomento Cooperativo,
4a Calle 8a.
Avenida no. 310,
Apartado Postal 735,
Tegucigalpa, D.C.
HONDURAS

Sr. Ramón Velásques Nazar Federación de Asociaciónes Cooperativas de Ahorro y Credito de Honduras Ltda, Apartado Postal 653, Tegucigalpa DC. HONDURAS

Mr. P. E. Weeraman
ICA Regional Office and
Education Centre for
South-East Asia,
Bonow House
P. O. B. 3312,
43 Friends Colony, /East/
New Delhi 110014
INDIA

Prof. T.N. Rajarathnam
Principal,
College of Rural Higher
Education,
Sri Ramakrishna Vidyalaya,
Coimbatore 641020
INDIA

Shri D.P. Apte
Registrar,
Gokhale Institute of
Politics and Economics,
Poona 411004
INDIA

Dr. P.S. George, professor Indian Institute of Management, Vastrapur, Ahmedabad 380015 INDIA

Shri M.D. Desai
Deputy Director
Agro-Economic Research Centre,
Sardar Patel University,
Vallabh Vidyanagar,
Kaira, Gujarat,
INDIA

Mr. J.G. Kunte
National Institute of Community
Development,
P. O. B. No. 164, 500001,
Hyderabad
INDIA

Mr. N.K. Goil
Librarian
Institute of Economic Growth,
University Enclave,
Delhi - 110007.
INDIA

Mr. Wahyu Soekotjo
Institute of Economic and
Social Research,
University of Indonesia,
P. O. Box 295/Jkt.
Salemba Raya 4,
Djakarta
INDONESIA

Mr. Kahtan K. Al-Ani, Manager
Institute of Co-operation and
Agricultural Extension,
P. O. B. 163,
Baghdad
IRAQ

Miss Suad El Ferwzchi
General Cooperative Union,
P. O. B. 7010,
Baghdad
IRAQ

Dr. Abraham Daniel
Chairman,
Department of Labour Studies,
Faculty of Social Sciences,
Tel Aviv University.
Ramat-Aviv
Tel Aviv
ISRAEL

Mrs. Z. Nahir CIRCOM Ltd., Ha'arbaa St. 24. P. O. B. 7020 Tel Aviv ISRAEL Mr. J. Newiger
Food and Agriculture
Organization
ESH. Divison
Cooperatives and other
Farmer's Organization Group
Via delle Terme di Caracalla.
00100 Rome
ITALY

Miss N. Di Cara
Ente Nazionale delle Casse
Rurali, Agrarie ed enti
Ansiliati
Via Adige 26,
Rome
ITALY

M. Nguyen-Manh-Tu
ILO Expert, Chef de la Division
Education et Formation Coopératives
National Centre for the
Promotion of Co-opérative
Enterprises /CENAPEC/
B. P. 1812
Abidjan
IVORY COAST

Dr. Richard G. Coté
Director,
Division of Extra-Mural Services,
University of Botswana,
Lesotho and Swaziland,
P. O. Roma,
LESOTHO

Mile. Elamrani-Jamal Amina
Bureau pour le Développement de
la Coopération,
Secretariat d'Etat au Plan et
au Développement Regional,
17, rue Alexandre-Dumas,
Rabat
MOROCCO

Dr. Engo. Homero Ferrinho
Centro Moçambicano de Estudios
Cooperativos,
Caixa Postal 4136,
Lourenço Marques
MOZAMBIQUE

Mr. S. Awolalu
Cooperative Division,
Ministry of Trade and Industry,
P. O. B. 1028,
Ikeja, Lagos
NIGERIA

Dept. of Agricultural Economics and Rural Sociology, Ahmadu Bello University, P. O. B. 1044 Zaria NIGERIA

Dr. M. Ali Khan
University of Agriculture
Department of Co-operative Credit
Lyallpur
PAKISTAN

Dr. R.J. May
Field Director
New Guinea Research Unit
Australian National University
P. O. B. 1238
Boroko, Port Moresby
PAPUA /NEW GUINEA

Mr. A. Dudley
Principal Research Officer
Department of Business
Development
P. Office Wards Strip
Port Moresby
PAPUA /NEW GUINEA

Mr. Clemente E. Terso Jr.

Bureau of Cooperatives,
Department of Local Government
and Community Development,
13th Floor Quezon City Hall,
Elliptical Road,
Diliman, Quezon City
PHILIPPINES

Mr. V. U. Quintana
Agricultural Credit and
Cooperative Institute at
Los Baños College,
University of the Philippines,
Laguna
PHILIPPINES

Sr. Joaquim da Silva Lourenço Instituto Gulbenkian, de Ciéncia Oeiras PORTUGAL

Prof. Hector Octaviani
Director
Division de Investigaciones, del
Instituto de Cooperativismo,
Universidad de Puerto Rico,
Recinto de Rio Piedras, 00931
PUERTO RICO

Mr. F.B. Samura

Managing Director,

National Cooperative Development
Bank Ltd.

14, Wallace Johnson St.,

Freetown

REP. SIERRA LEONE

Joaquin Mateo
Director
Centro Nacional de Educación
Cooperativa,
Palacio de la Cooperación
San Félix 9
Apt de Correos 15
Zaragoza
SPAIN

Mr. G. Dahl
The Agricultural College
Dept. of Economics and
Statistics
S - 750 07 Uppsala 7
SWEDEN

Mr. R. Louis
International Labour Office,
Cooperative Branch, Sectoral
Activities Department
Case Postale 500
CH 1211 Geneva 22
SWITZERLAND

Shu-Sheng Yin
Prof. and Chairman of Department
of Cooperation,
Taiwan Provincial Chung Hsing
University,
Ho-Kiang Street,
Taipei
TAIWAN

Mr. B. K. Zegge
Rural Development Division
Prime Minister's Office,
P. O. B. 3021,
Dar es Salaam
TANZANIA

Mr. Simon M. Mbilinyi
Director,
Economic Research Bureau,
University College of
Dar es Salaam,
P. O. B. 35096
Dar es Salaam
TANZANIA

Mr. O. Odede

ICA Regional Office for East
and Central Africa,
P. O. B. 946,
Moshi
TANZANIA

Mr. P. Yeo
International Cooperative
Training Centre,
Cooperative College,
Stanford Hall,
Loughborough, Leics,
UNITED KINGDOM

Mr. F.H. Webster
Secretary
Research and Public Relations,
The Plunkett Foundation for
Cooperative Studies,
31, St. Giles,
Oxford, OXI 31F
UNITED KINGDOM

Miss O. Checkley
Secretary,
School of Oriental and African
Studies,
University of London
London W.C. 1.
UNITED KINGDOM

Dr. F.D. Mills
Senior Lecturer,
Department of Agricultural
Economics
University of Reading
Reading, Berks. RG6 2AR
UNITED KINGDOM

Mr. Albert L. Brown
American Technical Assistance
Corporation,
7655 Old Springhouse Road,
McLean,
Virginia 22101
U. S. A

Specialist in Cooperatives,
Center for Community Economic
Development,
1878 Massachusetts Avenue,
Cambridge
Massachusetts, 02140
U. S. A.

Mr. Frank Groves
Chairman,
University Center for
Cooperatives,
University of Wisconsin Extension,
524 Lowell Hall,
610 Langdon St. Madison,
Wisconsin 53706
U. S. A.

Mr. F.E. Ingalsbe
Director of Information,
Farmer Cooperative Service,
U.S. Department of
Agriculture,
Washington D.C. 20250
U.S.A.

## Mr. Baza-Luemba

Director
Université National du Zaire.
Campus de Kinshasa, Bibliothéque
Centrale, Servise Dons et Exchanges
B. P. 125.
Kinshasa XI.
ZAIRE, REP.

Mr. Sebisogo-Muhima
Research Assistant,
Centre Interdisciplinaire pour
le Développement et
l'Education Permanente,
/C.I.D.E P./
B.P. 801 Kinshasa XI.
ZAIRE, REP.

Prof. D.H. Evans
Rural Development Studies Bureau
P. O. B. 900
Lusaka
ZAMBIA

Mr. Arne Holmberg
Cooperative Research
and Planning Team,
Ministry of Rural Development,
Department of Cooperatives,
P. O. B. 1229
Lusaka
ZAMBIA